

## Lancaster, Brooks & Welch LLP

BARRISTERS AND SOLICITORS

TOWN OF PELHAM

MAY 1 7 2011

RECEIVED

#### PLEASE RESPOND TO WELLAND OFFICE

May 12, 2011

The Corporation of the Town of Pelham P. O. Box 400 Fonthill, Ontario LOS 1E0

Attention: Ms. Tara Druzina

Dear Madam:

RE: Registration of Development Agreement and Postponements of Interest from Dega Limited Duffy - 1133 Pelham Street, Fonthill

This letter is further to your email of May 5, 2011.

Please find enclosed:

- a) Development Agreement, registered on May 12, 2011, as instrument No. SN313458;
- b) Postponement of Dega mortgage to development agreement, registered May 12, 2011 as instrument No. SN313459;
- c) Postponement of Dega mortgage to development agreement, registered May 12, 1011 as instrument No. SN313460; and
- d) our account for services rendered.

We trust the above is satisfactory and remain,

Yours very truly,

LANCASTER BROOKS & WELCH LLP

PER

R. Bruce Smith

RBS:pm

Lancaster, Brooks & Welch LLP

Encls.

PO Box 790, 80 King Street, St. Catharines, Ontario L2R 6Z1 PO Box 67, 247 East Main Street, Welland, Ontario L3B 5N9 55 Main Street West, Grimsby, Ontario L3M 1R3 Tel. 905.641.1551 Fax 905.641.1830 Fax 905.735.3684 Fax 905.735.3340 Fax 905.594.1268

www.lbwlawyers.com

Malte von Anrep, Q.C.\*\* Bruce S. Wormald R. Bruce Smith Leanne E. Standryk

H. E. Thorsteinson, Q.C. David L. Edwards\* Thomas G. Hanrahan Stanleigh E. Palka Gary L. Black Robert W.P. Welch Maria G. Lucarelli Christopher J. Bittle Michael S. Stratton Sheila P. Marcantonio Michael A. Mann\*\*\* Yaroslav O. Diduch



## Lancaster, Brooks & Welch LLP

BARRISTERS AND SOLICITORS

In account with

TOWN OF PELHAM

MAY 1 7 2011

RECEIVED

Lancaster Brooks & Welch LLP
PO Box 67, 247 East Main Street, Welland, Ontario L3B 5N9 Tel. 905.735.5684

May 12, 2011

The Corporation of the Town of Pelham P. O. Box 400 Fonthill, Ontario LOS 1E0

RE: Registration of Development Agreement and Postponements of Interest from Dega Limited Duffy - 1133 Pelham Street, Fonthill

TO OUR FEE for professional services herein, including receiving your instructions; to preparation of acknowledgment and direction for signature by the Mayor and Clerk for development agreement; to registration of development agreement electronically; to preparation of acknowledgment and direction for signature by Dega Limited for the two postponements; to registration of two postponements of interest from Dega Limited electronically; to reporting to you,

H.S.T. No. R117996660

"In accordance with Section 35 of the Solicitors Act, interest will be charged at the rate of whose per annum on unpaid fees, charges or disbursements calculated from a date that is one month after this statement is delivered."

LRO # 59 Notice

Receipted as SN313458 on 2011 05 12

The applicant(s) hereby applies to the Land Registrar. yyyy mm dd

Page 1 of 1

at 11:20

**Properties** 

64072 - 0636 LT

✓ Redescription

Description

PT THOROLD TWP LOT 177 BEING PTS 3 & 4, 59R14440; PELHAM

Address

PELHAM STREET

**FONTHILL** 

PIN

PIN

64072 - 0121 LT

✓ Redescription

Description

PT TWP LT 177 THLD, BEING PTS 1 & 2, 59R14440; PELHAM

Address

1133 PELHAM STREET

**FONTHILL** 

#### Consideration

Consideration

\$ 1.00

#### Applicant(s)

The notice is based on or affects a valid and existing estate, right, interest or equity in land

Name

THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF PELHAM

Address for Service

P. O. Box 400 Fonthill, Ontario L0S 1E0

This document is not authorized under Power of Attorney by this party.

This document is being authorized by a municipal corporation by DAVE AUGUSTYN-MAYOR and NANCY J. BOZZATO-CLERK.

#### Statements

This notice is pursuant to Section 71 of the Land Titles Act.

This notice is for an indeterminate period

Schedule: See Schedules

#### Signed By

Robert Bruce Smith

201-247 East Main St. PO Box 67

acting for Applicant(s) Signed 2011 05 12

Welland L3B 5N9

Tel

9057355684

Fax

9057353340

I have the authority to sign and register the document on behalf of the Applicant(s).

#### Submitted By

LANCASTER, BROOKS & WELCH (WELLAND)

201-247 East Main St. PO Box 67

2011 05 12

Welland L3B 5N9

Tel

9057355684

Fax 9057353340

#### Fees/Taxes/Payment

Statutory Registration Fee

\$60.00

Total Paid

\$60.00

# MICHAEL DUFFY AND PAMELA DUFFY DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

<u>Title</u>	Section #	Page #
Definitions	1	3
Lands Affected	2	6
General Provisions	3	6
Design and Supervision of Construction of Services	4	8
Construction of Works	5	9
Contractors	6	9
Water Supply	7	9
Sanitary Sewers	8	10
Grade Control Plan	9	10
Driveways	10	10
Trees	11	11
Security Deposits and Refunds	12	11
Building Permits and Occupancy	13	13
Maintenance Guarantee	14	13
Cash-In-Lieu of Parkland Dedication	15	13
Inhibiting Order on the Lands	16	13
Default	17	14
Rescission of Agreement	18	14
Right of Entry	19	15
Warning Clauses	20	15
Indemnification	21	15
Covenants That Run With the Land	22	15
Notice	23	16
Postponement and Subordination	24	16
Schedules	25	16
Number and Gender	26	16
Notice Re: Development Charges	27	17
Binding Effect	28	17

THIS AGREEMENT made this

44-

day of

May

, 2011

**BETWEEN**:

#### MICHAEL DUFFY AND PAMELA DUFFY

Hereinafter called the "Developer"

OF THE FIRST PART

- and -

#### THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF PELHAM

Hereinafter called the "Town"

OF THE SECOND PART

**WHEREAS** the Developer purports to be the owner of the lands in the Town of Pelham described in Schedule "A" and has applied to the Town of Pelham Committee of Adjustment for consent under application B-01/11P and B-02/11P and has obtained such consent subject to conditions;

**AND WHEREAS** the decision of the Committee of Adjustment was conditional upon, among other things, the entering into an Agreement by the Developer and the Town;

**AND WHEREAS** the Town requires the Developer, before final approval of the consents, to agree to certain terms and conditions for the development for which approval is sought;

**NOW THEREFORE THIS AGREEMENT WITNESSETH** that in consideration of the Town approving the said proposed development, and in consideration of the sum of One Dollar (\$1.00) of lawful money of Canada now paid by the Developer to the Town (the receipt thereof is hereby acknowledged), the Parties hereto mutually convenant and agree as follows:

#### 1. **DEFINITIONS**

In this Agreement:

- (a) <u>BUILDER</u> means the person engaged by the Owner or subsequent Owner to construct a Building or any other work on the Lot.
- (b) <u>BUILDING BY-LAW</u> means the Building By-law No. 2277 (2001) passed by the Town and amended from time to time.
- (c) **BUILDING** means any structure which is used or intended to be used for the shelter, accommodation or enclosure of persons, animals or chattels, and includes any structure as defined as a Building in the *Building Code Act* or in the Building By-law, but does not include any vehicles as defined herein.
- (d) <u>BUILDING CODE ACT</u> means the *Building Code Act*, R.S.O. 1990, c.B. 13, as amended, and all regulations thereto.
- (e) <u>BUILDING PERMIT</u> means a permit issued by the Chief Building Official of the Town and required pursuant to the provisions of the *Building Code Act*, as amended, or any successor thereto and the Building By-law of the Town and amendments thereto.
- (f) CHIEF BUILDING OFFICIAL means the Chief Building Official of the Town as appointed by by-law of the Council.
- (g) **CLERK** means the Clerk of the Town.
- (h) <u>COMMISSION</u> means the applicable local governing hydro-electric commission located in the Town.
- (i) CONSTRUCTION LIEN ACT means the Construction Lien Act, R.S.O. 1990, c.C. 30, as amended, and all regulations thereto.

- (j) <u>COST OF CONSTRUCTION</u> means the cost of construction approved by the Director and may include engineering fees ancillary thereto.
- (k) **COUNCIL** means the Council of the Corporation of the Town of Pelham.
- (I) <u>DEVELOPER</u> means Michael Duffy and Pamela Duffy, its successors and assigns, and includes its successors in title to the Lands or a Lot shown on the Development Plan.
- (m) <u>DEVELOPER'S CONSULTING ENGINEER</u> means the person or persons registered with the Professional Engineers of Ontario who are employed by the Developer, at its expense, to provide engineering services.
- (n) <u>DEVELOPMENT CHARGES</u> means the development charges as prescribed by the *Development Charges Act*, R.S.O. 1990, c.D. 9, as amended, or any successor thereto.
- (o) <u>DEVELOPMENT PLAN</u> means the Development Plan attached hereto as Schedule "A-1" over the Lands pursuant to the provisions of the *Planning Act*, as amended, or any successor thereto.
- (p) <u>DIRECTOR</u> means the Director of Community and Infrastructure Services for the Town.
- (q) FRONT LOT LINE means the front lot line as defined in the Town's Zoning By-law No. 1136 (1987), as amended, or any successor thereto.
- (r) GRADE CONTROL PLAN shall mean a plan for the purpose of controlling the overall drainage pattern through the establishment of relative surface elevations in accordance with good engineering and drainage practices.
- (s) **LANDS** means the lands described in Schedule "A" hereto annexed.
- (t) <u>LETTER OF CREDIT</u> means a standby municipal, irrevocable Letter of Credit issued by a major chartered bank or credit union, posted with the Town pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. The Letter of Credit shall be in form satisfactory to the Town and shall contain a clause that automatically renews it from year to year, unless the Town gives written notice that it does not require the Letter of Credit to be renewed.
- (u) <u>LOCAL IMPROVEMENT</u> shall include utilities, fencing, sanitary sewers, storm sewers, sidewalks, curbs and gutters, pavements and such other local improvements as are defined by the *Municipal Act*, as amended, or any successor thereto.
- (v) <u>LOT</u> means a lot as defined in Town's Zoning By-law No. 1136 (1987), as amended, or any successor thereto.
- (w) <u>LOT FRONTAGE</u> means lot frontage as defined in Town's Zoning By-law No. 1136 (1987), as amended, or any successor thereto.
- (x) <u>LOT GRADING PLAN</u> means a drawing showing grades, swales and drainage patterns and may include catch basins and floor heights in relation to grades for each individual building Lot or Block in the Development Plan.
- (y) MAINTENANCE GUARANTEE means an undertaking by the Developer to the Town that all Works constructed under this Agreement will function as designed and will not fail in any manner whatsoever so as to cause a risk to public safety or private lands, building or structures within the Development Plan or immediately adjacent boundary lands, and that should the Works, or any of them, fail or not perform their intended function within the specified maintenance guarantee period, they will be replaced or repaired to the satisfaction of the Director by the Developer at its cost.

- (z) <u>MUNICIPAL ACT</u> means the *Municipal Act*, S.O. 2001, c.25, as amended, and all regulations thereto.
- (aa) ONTARIO LAND SURVEYOR shall mean a surveyor commissioned by the Province of Ontario and qualified to establish monuments that define the boundaries of a parcel or parcels of land and to prepare all necessary reference plans and surveys for the purpose of the Agreement.
- (bb) **OWNER** means the applicant for a Building Permit for one of the Lots and includes the person on whose behalf an application for a Building Permit is made.
- (cc) PLANNING ACT means the Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990, c.P. 13, as amended, and all regulations thereto.
- (dd) <u>PLANS</u> shall mean all drawings, plans, specifications, contracts and other documents providing for the installation, construction and erection of the Works approved by and filed in the office of the Director prior to execution of this Agreement by the Town.
- (ee) PRIMARY SERVICES means all private utilities and all municipal services including, without restricting the generality of the foregoing, storm sewers, sanitary sewers, sidewalks, fencing, watermain, roads (including base coarse asphalt and curbs and gutters), street lighting and drainage works and swales and/or such other works as detailed in Schedule "D" (Financial Obligations) attached to and forming part of this Agreement.
- (ff) PRIVATE UTILITIES means telephone, hydro electric systems and natural gas systems and cable television systems.
- (gg) **REGION** means The Regional Municipality of Niagara.
- (hh) REGIONAL PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT means the Region's Public Works Department.
- (ii) <u>SECONDARY SERVICES</u> means all works to be installed, constructed, or erected which are not Primary Services or private utilities and/or such other works as detailed in Schedule "D" (Financial Obligations) attached to and forming part of this Agreement.
- (jj) <u>SECTION</u>, when used in reference to a numbered part of the Agreement, means:
  - (i) a complete section including all its sections and subsections;
  - (ii) a particular subsection including its subsections; and
  - (iii) a particular subsection as the context may dictate or require.
- (kk) <u>STREET</u> means street as defined in the Town's Zoning By-law No. 1136 (1987), as amended, or any successor thereto.
- (II) <u>STREET LINE</u> means Street Line as defined in Town's Zoning By-law No. 1136 (1987), as amended, or any successor thereto.
- (mm) <u>SUPERVISION</u> means the full-time inspection and scrutiny of all Works for the express purpose of enforcing the provisions of this Agreement and certifying that the Works have been performed and completed to Town standards in the form prescribed for this purpose and "SUPERVISE" means to carry out such Supervision.
- (nn) TREASURER means the Director of Financial Services of the Town.
- (oo) <u>UTILITY SERVICES</u> means physical plant including but not limited to pipes, valves, conduits, cables, terminals, transformers, etc. owned and operated by communications, television, hydro, gas and oil companies or any other utility

companies.

(pp) <u>WORKS</u> shall jointly and severally mean and include all Services and all other matters, both internal and external, required to be completed or performed by the Developer pursuant to this Agreement.

#### 2. LANDS AFFECTED

The Lands to be subdivided are those Lands described in Schedule "A" attached hereto and the Development Agreement shall be registered against all of such Lands. The registered ownership of the Lands shall be confirmed by the Developer's solicitor by way of certificate in form satisfactory to the Town.

#### 3. GENERAL PROVISIONS

- (a) Unless the context otherwise requires, where the Developer is obligated by this Agreement or the approved Plans to make any payments or install or construct or carry out any services or action the provisions therefore contained herein shall be deemed to include the words "at the sole expense of the Developer".
- (b) The Developer hereby covenants, warrants and agrees to save harmless and keep the Town indemnified from and against all manner of actions, causes of actions, suits, claims and demands that may howsoever arise through or from the terms of this Agreement, other than claims arising from negligence by the Town of Pelham, its servants and agents.
- (c) The Developer and the Town acknowledge and agree that it is their intent that all terms, conditions and covenants contained herein:
  - (i) shall run with the Lands;
  - (ii) shall be binding upon the Developer, its heirs, executors, administrators, assigns and successors in title, from time to time; and
  - (iii) the benefits of the said covenants shall enure to the Town, its successors and assigns in title, of all roads, Streets and public Lands forming part of the Lands.
- (d) Any notices required or permitted to be given pursuant to the terms of this agreement shall be given in the manner set out in Section 23.
- (e) This Agreement and everything herein contained shall enure to the benefit of and be binding upon the successors and assigns of the parties hereto and upon those persons and/or corporations hereafter acquiring title to all or any part of the Lands.
- (f) The Developer shall impose restrictions as set forth in Schedule "C" annexed hereto on all the Lands so that subsequent Owners will be made aware of and shall strictly adhere to the requirements of this Agreement.
- (g) The Schedules attached hereto are deemed to be a part of this Agreement and are to be interpreted as if the contents thereof were included in this Agreement.
- (h) The Developer agrees to be bound by the penalty provisions of the *Planning Act* including, but not limited to, Section 67 of said *Act*.
- (i) Notwithstanding the provisions of this agreement, the Developer shall be subject to all the By-laws of the Town and all provincial and federal government statutes and/or regulations and amendments thereto affecting the development of land and installation of municipal services.
- (j) If any term of this agreement shall be found to be ultra vires of the Town, or otherwise unlawful, such term shall conclusively be deemed to be severable and the remainder of this agreement shall be and remain in full force and

effect.

- (k) The Developer shall not call into question directly or indirectly in any proceeding whatsoever in law or in equity or before any administrative or other tribunal the right of the Town to enter into this agreement and to enforce each and every term, covenant and condition thereof and this provision may be pleaded by the Town in any such action or proceeding as a complete and conclusive estoppel of any denial of such right.
- (I) Time shall be of the essence of this agreement.
- (m) In the event that a Mortgagee(s) exercises any rights as to sale, possession or foreclosure or takes any other steps to enforce its security against the Lands then such Mortgagee(s) agrees on behalf of itself, its heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns not to deal with the Lands as a development or part thereof unless and until a new agreement in the same form, mutatis mutandis, as this Agreement has been entered into with the Town.
- (n) The Developer shall notify or cause to be notified, each and every purchaser of a Lot or Lots within the Development Plan, of all Works contracted by the Developer, the Developer's obligations to maintain the Works and all other conditions covered by this Agreement and shall cause such information to be fully recorded in any offer to purchase or agreement for sale entered into by the Developer.
- (o) The Developer shall pay, before final approval of the Development Plan is requested, all arrears of taxes and all taxes for the current year owing in respect of the Lands and the Buildings situate thereon.
- (p) The Developer shall commute and pay to the Town before final approval of the Development Plan is requested any and all Local Improvement rates assessed against the Lands.
- (q) The Town shall cause this Agreement to be Registered against the title to the Lands and at its option against the title to every Lot shown on the Development Plan.
- (r) If, after this agreement is executed, the Town, the Ministry of the Environment, the Ministry of Natural Resources, the Minister of Housing or the Region shall impose any further condition or requirement which is not contained herein, then the Developer shall forthwith upon demand enter into such further Agreement or give such further assurances as the Town may require and the Developer shall not contravene any condition or requirement of the Minister of Housing or the Region notwithstanding that the same is not contained herein.
- (s) The Developer shall cause the final Development Plan, as approved by the Town of Pelham, to be registered within thirty (30) days after its approval.
- (t) The Developer shall reimburse the Town for all fees and disbursements incurred by it in connection with the preparation, approval, execution and registration of this Agreement and all related documentation in connection with the preparation and enactment of any by-law or registration of any subsequent Agreements which may be required to implement this Agreement.
- (u) All Streets and properties abutting on the Development Plan or used for access to the Lands during the installation or construction of the Works or during the construction of Buildings upon the Lots shall, at all times, be kept in a good, clean and useable condition and, if damaged or littered, shall be restored immediately to the Town's requirements.
- (v) All trucks making deliveries to or taking materials from the Lands included within the Development Agreement shall be adequately covered and not unreasonably loaded so as to scatter refuse, rubbish, dust or debris on abutting Streets or properties.

- (w) Any lands required to be conveyed by the Developer in accordance with the provisions hereof shall be in a neat and tidy condition, free of all debris and trash, and the Developer shall complete all services for the Lands in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.
- (x) The Developer shall ensure that adequate dust control and mud tracking control measures are carried out during the construction of all Works and Buildings upon the Lands.
- (y) In the event that the Developer wishes to register more than one Development Agreement over the Lands, the Developer shall first obtain the written consent of the Town to do so, which consent shall be conditional upon the Developer registering such Development Agreement in such order as determined by the Town and upon registering such Development Agreement concurrently. The Developer shall not register a Development Agreement over part of the Lands without prior written consent of the Town.

#### 4. DESIGN AND SUPERVISION OF CONSTRUCTION OF SERVICES

- (a) The Developer shall employ, at its cost, a competent and qualified consulting engineer approved by the Director, to:
  - (i) carry out all soil investigations required by the Director;
  - (ii) design all of the works required to be completed by this Agreement;
  - (iii) provide the Director with an estimate of the cost of design, construction and maintenance of all works to be constructed under this Agreement to be used as the basis for determining the amount of security to be posted by the Developer prior to execution of this Agreement to guarantee the construction and maintenance of all works required under this Agreement;
  - (iv) prepare engineering drawings to include plans and profiles and specifications for the works and to submit detailed plans, profiles and specifications to the Director for approval prior to the installation or construction of such works;
  - (v) submit to the Director the detailed plans for signing and provide the Director with two (2) sets of full-sized, signed hard copies and two (2) sets of signed hard copies reduced to 11" x 17" size;
  - (vi) obtain, in conjunction with the Town, all of the necessary approvals prior to installation or construction of the works;
  - (vii) call tenders for the installation and construction of the works;
  - (viii) obtain the approval from the Director of the contractor employed to install or construct the works:
  - (ix) provide full-time resident supervision, inspection and contract administration of all works covered by this Agreement;
  - (x) maintain all of the records of the installation or construction of the works and submit a copy of the same to the Director;
  - (xi) supply to the Director "As Constructed" drawings of all of the works installed or constructed by the contractor in both hard copy and DWG digitized format (AutoCad 2000 or equivalent), at the time of completion of primary services;
  - (xii) obtain from the Director the details regarding the form and scale of these drawings prior to their presentation;

- (xiii) on the completion of the installation or construction of the works, to supply the Town with a certificate, in a form satisfactory to the Director, that the works were installed or constructed in accordance with the approved plans and specifications;
- (xiv) provide the Director with individual record sheets for all sewer and water service locations and depths;
- (xv) accompany the Director on a final inspection of the works at the conclusion of the maintenance period herein specified and before the assumption of the works by the Town;
- (xvi) supervise the construction of any remedial work which the Director may direct;
- (xvii) provide building levels for construction purposes as hereinafter provided;
- (xviii) furnish the Director with the preliminary lot grading certificate for each Lot for which an application for a building permit is made; and
- (xix) provide the Town with the final lot grading certificate for each lot.
- (b) The Developer shall not install Works prior to the receipt by it in writing of the approval of the Director of the detailed Plans and specifications therefor.
- (c) All of the works to be installed or constructed under this Agreement shall be installed or constructed under the direct supervision of the Developer's Consulting Engineer at the expense of the Developer.

#### 5. CONSTRUCTION OF WORKS

The Developer agrees to construct and pay the whole cost of such construction and materials required for all of the works referred to in this Agreement and the Schedules attached, and in accordance with the conditions and specifications contained in said Agreement and Schedules.

#### 6. CONTRACTORS

Before commencement of any works, the Developer shall show satisfactory proof to the Director, that the proposed contractors or sub-contractors, whom the Developer has retained to construct works described in this Agreement, or any part of the works, have sufficient and valid liability insurance policies, indicating that the Town and its agents and servants are named insured; a certificate from the Workers' Safety Insurance Board showing that the contractor is in good standing; and satisfactory evidence that the contractor is qualified, experienced and has adequate equipment to successfully complete the Works. Any contractor employed by the Developer shall, as a condition of such employment, be approved by the Director.

#### 7. WATER SUPPLY

- (a) The Developer shall at its own expense construct water connections (laterals) to each Lot from the street main to the Street Line. The water lateral shall be 20mm diameter type K copper tubing.
- (b) The Developer shall ensure that Town Community and Infrastructure Services Staff (Water Distribution System Operator) witnesses the required connections to the municipal water supply service.
- (c) The location of the water service laterals shall be illustrated on the Site Servicing and Grading Plan including restoration of affected road and boulevard surfaces. The Site Servicing and Grading Plan shall be attached to this Agreement as Schedule "B".

(d) The Developer shall comply with the provisions of the *Ontario Water Resources Act* and amendments thereto and all Regulations thereunder, on all internal water supply services, which said *Act* and Regulations shall be enforced by the Town.

#### 8. SANITARY SEWERS

- (a) The Developer shall, at its own expense, construct sanitary sewer laterals on the said Lands to adequately serve the buildings to be erected thereon, such construction to be in accordance with specifications and a design approved by the Director and filed in the Town's offices prior to the issuance of a Building Permit. No storm, surface or roof water or weeping tiles shall be discharged into the sanitary sewer system. The sanitary sewer lateral shall be a minimum of 125mm diameter building sewer pipe or equal acceptable to the Director. The existing sanitary sewer lateral shall be inspected by the means of a colour video camera and a record of the inspection provided to the Town in compact disc format. The Town will review the video inspection report to determine if the sanitary sewer lateral can be continued to be used for servicing a new house proposed for this lot.
- (b) Domestic waste from any building constructed on any lot shall be discharged into the sanitary sewer system through a drain connected to the sanitary sewer lateral servicing each lot.
- (c) The location of the sanitary sewer laterals shall be illustrated on the Site Servicing and Grading Plan including restoration of affected road and boulevard surfaces. The Site Servicing and Grading Plan shall be attached to this Agreement as Schedule "B".
- (d) A permit must be applied for and a fee paid to the Regional Municipality of Niagara for each sanitary sewer lateral connection.

#### 9. GRADE CONTROL PLAN

The Developer shall be responsible for providing, at their expense, a Grade Control Plan for the land described in Schedule "A" attached hereto; said plan to meet with the approval of the Director. Building Restrictions shall be imposed upon each Lot and included in each deed prohibiting a subsequent owner thereof from altering such flow or from impeding the same to an extent sufficient to cause ponding in another Lot or adjacent property. Said Grade Control Plan shall be attached to this Agreement at Schedule "B". All elevations shown on Schedule "B" shall be maintained after construction of any building or structure upon the lands affected, and this provision shall be included in the Building Restrictions hereinbefore referred to. Minor changes to the storm drainage system may be permitted subject to the approval of the Director.

#### 10. DRIVEWAYS

- (a) The Developer shall provide granular driveway access on the boulevard prior to occupancy of any Building. It shall be the responsibility of the Developer to ensure that driveway access is maintained at all normal times during the construction or maintenance of the Works.
- (b) All driveway approaches between the edge of the road and the sidewalk, or in the absence of a sidewalk between the edge of the road and the Street Line, shall be paved by the Developer by no later than the 1st day of November in the year after the year in which the buildings served by the driveway approaches are occupied.
- (c) All driveway approaches shall be constructed to the satisfaction of the Director.

#### 11. TREES

- (a) In order to maintain a high standard of amenity and appearance, the Owner shall retain the maximum number of existing trees as approved by the Director consistent with good subdivision design and conservation practices;
- (b) In order to maintain a high standard of amenity and appearance, the Owner agrees to plant trees in accordance with the following:
  - (i) one tree per Lot Frontage and a minimum of two trees per Lot sideyard flankage shall be planted in the sodded portion of the street allowance between the lot line and the roadway in accordance with the Plans. Trees shall be sound, healthy, vigorous and free from plant disease with normally healthy root systems;
  - (ii) trees shall be 70 millimetre caliper, measured at a height of 1500 millimetres above grade, be contained in a wire basket and be of such native varieties as listed in the "Native Species of Niagara Planting Guide" published by Land Care Niagara and approved by the Town; (Black Maple, Basswood, Red Oak, Pin Oak)

In accordance with Schedule "D" affixed hereto, prior to execution of this Agreement by the Town, the Owner shall post with the Town security for the planting of trees at the rate of three-hundred dollars (\$300.00) per tree to be planted.

The Owner shall be solely responsible for acquiring and planting trees in accordance with the terms of this Agreement and delivering written notice to the Town that such work has been completed.

Provided, however, that in the event the Owner does not plant trees in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement or within the prescribed time or to the complete satisfaction of the Director then the Town may, at its sole discretion, plant or replace or replant trees in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement and apply the above mentioned security against the Town's costs and/or collect such costs in like manner as municipal taxes.

#### 12. SECURITY DEPOSITS AND REFUNDS

The Developer shall be responsible for the full amount of the cost for the design, servicing and maintenance of the Development Plans together with all Town administrative and consulting fees and legal costs and shall be required to post security, in a form satisfactory to the Town, on accounts of aforesaid costs, charges and fees in accordance with Schedule "D" affixed hereto prior to execution of this Agreement by the Town.

Security to be posted for Services and to cover the Town administrative, engineering and legal costs shall be calculated on the basis of the Developer's estimated cost of design, construction and maintenance of all Works as set out in Schedule "D" annexed hereto.

#### (a) CASH PAYMENTS

Prior to the execution of this Agreement by the Town, for payment of services to be rendered by the Town, its servants and its agents as required by this Agreement, and for presently outstanding payments owing to the Town, the Developer shall, in accordance with Schedule "D" annexed hereto, deposit with the Town the following non-refundable cash amounts:

- (i) a cash amount to secure the Town's engineering, administrative consulting and legal costs for this Agreement, approval of the Plans, and enactment of by-laws calculated on the following basis:
  - (1) where the Cost of Construction of all Works is less than fifty thousand dollars (\$50,000.00), the charge shall be two thousand five hundred dollars (\$2,500.00);

- (2) where the Cost of Construction of all Works is in excess of fifty thousand dollars (\$50,000.00), the charge shall be two thousand five hundred dollars (\$2,500.00) plus five percent (5.0%) of the costs exceeding fifty thousand dollars (\$50,000.00);
- (ii) a cash amount to cover all arrears of taxes, all taxes for the current year and all current Local Improvement charges assessed against the Lands; and

#### (b) <u>LETTERS OF CREDIT</u>

- (i) Before commencing any of the Works provided for in this Agreement, the Developer will deposit with the Town a Letter of Credit drawn upon a chartered bank in favour of the Town and in a form satisfactory to the Treasurer, in an amount approved by the Director, which Letter of Credit shall be sufficient to guarantee the satisfactory completion of the Works or any portion of the Works as established by the Town in its sole discretion, and payments or any part thereof required to be made by this Agreement, and will, without restricting the generality of the foregoing, guarantee the following:
  - (1) payment of twenty percent (20%) of the approved estimated costs of the construction of the Primary Services to service the Lands, plus one hundred and twenty percent (120%) of the approved estimated construction costs of the Secondary Services upon the Lands as shown in Schedule "D" attached; and
  - (2) payment of one hundred percent (100%) of any other payments or Works as may be required of the Developer by the Town pursuant to this Agreement.
  - (ii) The amount of the Letter of Credit required hereunder shall not be reduced unless all of the conditions of this Agreement are complied with and the estimated costs of rectifying any outstanding deficiencies, as estimated in the sole discretion of the Director, plus one hundred and twenty percent (120%) of the estimated costs of the completion of all outstanding Primary Services and Secondary Services plus all other outstanding costs payable under this Agreement, plus the Maintenance Guarantee as required under Section 14 of this Agreement, plus any Construction Lien Act requirements are all, in total, less than the amount of the Letter of Credit held by the Town. In such an instance, the amount of the Letter of Credit may, in the sole discretion of the Director be reduced from time to time to an amount equal to the total of all amounts set out above. Such reduction shall be based on the following:
    - (1) progress certificates from the Developer's Consulting Engineer setting forth the cost of the Works completed and paid to date and the cost of unfinished Works; and
    - (2) a request for reduction in the amount of the Letter of Credit in a form approved by the Director; and
    - (3) proof of payment in a form satisfactory to the Director of the amounts paid on account of the completed Works to the date of the application for reduction.

Notwithstanding anything herein contained, the amount of the Letter of Credit shall at all times be sufficient to cover the balance of the costs of the completion of the unfinished Works, including Works deferred for extended periods and the requirements of the Construction Lien Act.

(c) The Developer shall pay the cost of the Works and the fees of the Developer's Consulting Engineer and the Ontario Land Surveyor

#### 13. BUILDING PERMITS AND OCCUPANCY

- (a) The Developer agrees that, unless otherwise determined by Council, no building permits shall be issued on any parts of the lands until all primary services as defined elsewhere in this Agreement are completed and operational to the satisfaction of the Director and soundness testing have been completed and results provided to and accepted by the Director.
- (b) In addition to paying the building permit fee, the Owner of a lot shall:
  - (i) Pay the amount of the development charges which are applicable at the time of application for building permit; and
  - (ii) Pay the amount of the cash-in-lieu of lands for parks purposes pursuant to Section 15 of this Agreement.

#### 14. MAINTENANCE GUARANTEE

- (a) The Letter of Credit deposited by the Developer pursuant to Section 132hereof may, upon the completion of the Primary Services, and prior to the assumption of the Primary Services by the Town, at the Director's discretion, be reduced to an amount equal to ten percent (10%) of the completed Works (Schedule "D") plus one hundred and twenty per cent (120%) of the value, as estimated by the Director, of any uncompleted Secondary Services and such Letter of Credit shall be retained by the Town as a Maintenance Guarantee to guarantee the workmanship and materials of the Works until such time as the Works are completed.
- (b) The Maintenance Guarantee as required under subsection 14(a) hereof, may be reduced further to five percent (5%) subject to the Developer meeting all requirements of the *Construction Lien Act*.
- (c) The Letter of Credit may be realized upon by the Town if the Developer defaults in any payment or condition contained herein.
- (d) The Developer shall be conclusively deemed to be in breach of the covenant contained in Section 14(c), if, in the case of the cost of the Works or the fees of the Developer's Consulting Engineer and the Ontario Land Surveyor, a lien against the Lands or any part thereof is preserved pursuant to the Construction Lien Act and if, in the case of any other payment required to be made under this Agreement, a notice to that effect is forwarded to the Developer by the Director in accordance with Section 23 hereof.

#### 15. CASH-IN-LIEU OF PARKLAND DEDICATION

Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the Owner agrees to pay five percent (5%) of the value of the lands to the Town in lieu of lands for parks purposes pursuant to the provisions of Subsection 42(6) of the *Planning Act*. The Developer shall have the Lots appraised by a qualified appraiser to determine the value of each Lot pursuant to Subsection 42(6) the *Planning Act*. Such appraisal is valid for a period of twelve (12) months, after such period the Town may, at its sole discretion, require an updated appraisal.

#### 16. INHIBITING ORDER ON THE LANDS

The Developer shall not transfer or otherwise deal with the Lands or any part thereof and also acknowledges and agrees that the Town will register an inhibiting order pursuant to the *Land Titles Act*, R.S.O. 1990, c.L.5, preventing transfer of all or any part of the Lands until such time as the Director has issued the Completion

Certificate for Primary Services for the Lands. The Developer also acknowledges that the Town may register an inhibiting order against all or any part of the Lands for other matters to ensure compliance with this Agreement.

#### 17. <u>DEFAULT</u>

- (a) Upon breach by the Developer of any covenant, term, condition or requirement of this Agreement, or upon the Developer becoming insolvent or making an assignment for the benefit of creditors, the Town, at its option, may declare that the Developer is in default.
- (b) Notice of such default ("Notice of Default") shall be given by the Town and if the Developer does not remedy such default within such time as provided in the notice, the Town may declare that the Developer is in final default under this Agreement and shall then forthwith give notice of final default ("Notice of Final Default") thereof to the Developer.
- (c) Upon Notice of Default having been given, the Town may require all work by the Developer, their servants, agents, independent contractors and subcontractors to cease (other than any work necessary to remedy such default) until such default has been remedied and in the event of final default, may require all work as aforesaid to cease.
- (d) Upon Notice of Final Default having been given to the Developer, the Town may, at its option, adopt or pursue any or all of the following remedies, but shall not be bound to do so:
  - (i) Enter upon the Lands shown on the Development Plan by its servants, agents and contractors and complete any work, services repairs or maintenance wholly or in part required herein to be done by the Developer and collect the cost thereof from the Developer and/or enforce any security available to it;
  - (ii) Make any payment which out to have been made by the Developer and upon demand collect the amount thereof from the Developer and/or enforce any security available to it;
  - (iii) Retain any sum of money heretofore paid by the Developer to the Town for any purpose and apply the same in payment or part payment for any work which the Town may undertake;
  - (iv) Assume any work or services at its option, whether the same are completed or not, and thereafter the Developer shall have no claim or title hereto or remuneration therefor;
  - (v) Bring action to compel specific performance of all or any part of this Agreement or for damages;
  - (vi) Add any costs incurred by the Town to the tax collector's roll for the Lands and collect such costs by action or in like manner as municipal real property taxes; or
  - (vii) Exercise any other remedy granted to the Town under the terms of this Agreement or available to the Town in law.

#### 18. RESCISSION OF AGREEMENT

- (a) In the event that the Development Agreement is not registered within one (1) year from the date hereof, then the Town may, at its option and on one (1) month's notice in writing to the Developer, declare this Agreement null and void and may Register against the title to the Lands included within the Development Plan a notice to that effect.
- (b) The Developer shall not sell or convey any Lot shown on the Development Plan until this Agreement is registered on title.

- 15 -

#### 19. RIGHT OF ENTRY

The Developer shall obtain from any Purchaser of any of the Lots shown on the Development Plan, a written statement permitting the Developer and the Town to enter upon such Lands for a period of three (3) years after the transfer thereof in order to ensure compliance with the provisions of this Agreement and shall forward an executed copy of written statement to the Town upon demand therefor.

#### 20. WARNING CLAUSES

- (a) The Developer acknowledges and agrees to insert into all offers and agreements of purchase and sale the following clause: "All Works within the Plan, including but not limited to storm sewers, storm water management facilities, sanitary sewers, watermain, roads, curbs and gutters, street lighting and drainage works and swales, are contracted by the Developer. The Developer is obligated to maintain the Works in accordance with the Agreement and Plans registered on title."
- (b) The Developer acknowledges and hereby agrees to insert into all offers and agreements of purchase and sale the following clause: "The lands in the Plan are subject to the payment of development charges which are payable prior to the issuance of a building permit."
- (c) The Developer acknowledges and hereby agrees to insert into all offers and agreements of purchase and sale the following clause: "The lands in the Plan are subject to the payment of cash-in-lieu of the dedication of land for park purposes prior to the issuance of a building permit."

#### 21. INDEMNIFICATION

Until the expiration of the Maintenance Guarantee, the Developer, on behalf of itself, its successors and assigns, including its successors in title of the Lands in the Development Plan, hereby releases and discharges and indemnifies the Town from and against all actions, causes of action, suits, claims and demands whatsoever which may arise by reason of:

- (a) any alteration of the existing grade or level of any Street or Streets on the Plan to bring the said grade or level in conformity with the grade or level required by the Director; and
- (b) any damage to the Lands abutting on any Street or Streets shown on the Plan or to any Building erected thereon arising from or in consequence of any such alteration of grade or level; and
- (c) any damages or injuries (including death) to persons or damage to property occurring or arising on any Street or Streets on the Plan, however caused.

#### 22. COVENANTS THAT RUN WITH THE LAND

- (a) The Developer and the Town acknowledge and agree that it is their intent that all the terms, conditions and covenants contained herein shall be covenants that run with the land and that the burden of such covenants shall be binding upon the Developer, their successors and assigns, and successors in title, from time to time, of the Lands described in Schedule "A" of this Agreement and any part or parts thereof and that the benefits of the said covenants shall enure to the Town, its successors and assigns in title of all roads, Streets and public lands forming part of or abutting on the Lands described in Schedule "A".
- (b) The Developer agrees that it shall, upon the sale or transfer by it of the Lands included within the Development Plan or any part or parts thereof, require the Purchaser or Transferee thereof as a condition of such sale or transfer to execute an Agreement satisfactory in form to the Town's Solicitor, agreeing to assume this Agreement and to be bound by and fulfil all of the terms, conditions and covenants herein set forth and containing a like

covenant to this effect. The said Assumption Agreement shall be executed by the Town, the Developer and any such Purchaser or Transferee and may, at the Town's option, be registered upon title. Provided, however, that such Assumption Agreement shall not be required for the sale or transfer of a Lot as shown on the Development Plan for the purpose of construction.

#### 23. NOTICE

All notices required or permitted to be given by one party to the other shall be given in writing either by prepaid registered mail or delivered personally addressed,

in the case of the Town to

Town of Pelham 20 Pelham Town Square P.O. Box 400 Fonthill ON L0S 1E0

and in the case of the Developer to

Michael Duffy and Pamela Duffy 23L101 Lakeshore Road Wainfleet, ON L0S 1V0

or at such other addresses as may be given by either of them to the other in writing from time to time, and such notices shall be deemed to have been received, if mailed, on the third day following that on which it was so mailed and if delivered, on the day of such delivery.

#### 24. POSTPONEMENT AND SUBORDINATION

The Developer covenants and agrees at its own expense, to obtain and register such documentation in form satisfactory to the Town's solicitor from all mortgagees or encumbrancers as may be deemed necessary by the Town to postpone and subordinate their interest in the Lands to the interest of the Town to the extent that this Agreement and all related documentation to be registered shall take effect and have priority as if they had been executed and registered before the execution and registration of the document or documents giving to the mortgagees and/or encumbrancers their interest in the Lands. The Developer acknowledges that it shall not be permitted to sell any lots within the Development Plan until such time as these postponements have been registered and that the Town shall be permitted to register an inhibiting order pursuant to the Land Titles Act to ensure compliance with same.

#### 25. SCHEDULES

The Schedules attached hereto are a part of this Agreement. All Schedules are to be interpreted as if the contents thereof were included in the Agreement.

#### 26. NUMBER AND GENDER

In this Agreement, unless there is something in the subject-matter or context inconsistent therewith:

- (i) words in the singular number include the plural and such words shall be construed as if the plural had been used;
- (ii) words in the plural include the singular and such words shall be construed as if the singular had been used; and
- (iii) words importing the use of any gender shall include all genders where the context or party referred to so requires, and the rest of the sentence shall be construed as if the necessary grammatical and terminological changes had been made.

#### 27. NOTICE RE: DEVELOPMENT CHARGES

The Developer agrees to provide notice to the first purchaser of any Lot in the Development, upon transfer of the Lots, of all Development Charges related to the Development, including Development Charges already paid by the Developer or Development Charges that may be payable in the future.

#### 28. BINDING EFFECT

This Agreement shall be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns.

SIGNED, SEALED AND DELIVE IN THE PRESENCE OF:	RED
}	MICHAEL DUPFY
Witness )  Tara Druzing )	MICHAEL D. DUHY
(Print Name) )	(Print Name)
)	PAMELA DUFFY
	fance la Kluffy
Witness )  Tana Onuxina)	PAMELA DUFFY.
(Print Name) )	(Print Name)
, )	THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF PELHAM
) ) )	five from
)	Dave Augustyń, Mayor
) )	Jany & Boggach
)	Nancy J Bozzato, Clerk

## TABLE OF SCHEDULES

		<u>Page No.</u>
Α	LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF DEVELOPMENT LANDS	19
В	SITE SERVICING AND PLAN	21
С	BUILDING RESTRICTIONS	22
D	FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS AND COST OF CONSTRUCTION	24

#### SCHEDULE "A"

#### **LEGAL DESCRIPTION**

Part of Lot 177, former Township of Thorold, now Town of Pelham, Regional Municipality of Niagara and more particularly described as Parts 1, 2, 3 and 4 of Reference Plan No. 59R-14440.

The described lands being all of PIN 64072-0121(LT) and PIN 64072-0636(LT).

#### SCHEDULE "B"

#### SITE SERVICINGAND GRADING PLAN

Site Servicing Plan Job No. 4349 SP, prepared by Suda & Maleszyk Surveying Inc., dated April 29, 2011, the original of which is located at the Town at the address shown in Section 23 of this Agreement.

#### SCHEDULE "C"

#### **BUILDING RESTRICTIONS**

(To be included in all Deeds)

The Developer shall cause to be registered against all Lots in the Development Plan the transfer restrictions and restrictive covenants outlined below.

According to the nature of the annexed instrument, the words "Vendor", "Purchaser" and "Land" shall be have the following meaning:

- (a) "VENDOR" means and includes also a grantor, transferor or seller and the heirs, successors and assigns of the Vendor.
- (b) "PURCHASER" means and includes also a grantee, transferee or buyer and the heirs, successors and assigns of the Purchaser.
- (c) "LAND" means and includes the land intended to be sold, conveyed or transferred by such instrument.

The Purchaser shall, in respect of the herein described land, adhere to and comply with the Grade Control Plan attached to the Agreement registered in the Land Titles Office for Niagara South and, in particular, shall do nothing to interfere with or impede the drainage patterns shown thereon. All grade elevation shown on the said Grade Control Plan shall be maintained after construction of any Building or structure upon the herein described land in accordance with the Town's Lot Grading Control Policy. In the event that the Purchaser fails to maintain such elevations, or to maintain the proper grades and levels herein referred to, or in the event that the Purchaser impedes any drainage system or pattern on the herein described Lands or neighbouring lands, the Purchaser shall be responsible for the immediate rectification and alteration of the land to conform with the drainage system or patterns laid out in the Agreement for any consequential damages, costs, expenses or other loss caused by the failure to maintain such grades or drainage patterns.

The Purchaser shall, in the event of requiring a different driveway entrance from that installed by the Vendor, relocate services/utilities at Purchaser's expense, cut and reconstruct the concrete curb where necessary on the roadway adjacent to the land herein described. He shall install, keep and maintain his driveway entrance or entrances from the traveled portion of the roadway to the Street line in good condition until the concrete sidewalk, concrete curbs and/or asphalt roadways for the said Development are constructed.

The Purchaser shall, within twelve (12) months of being able to occupy the home in accordance with the *Ontario Building Code* and to the satisfaction of the Chief Building Official, sod the lot.

The Purchaser shall maintain the road allowance between the Street line and the edge of the road in good condition and free from weeds and shall cut the grass thereon at frequent intervals.

The Purchaser will not remove any topsoil or strip the Lot of vegetation prior to commencing construction of a Building unit on the Lot. Only then will the Purchaser strip and excavate to the limit approved by the Town.

The Purchaser shall not occupy the dwelling on the Lot concerned until the Chief Building Official for the Town has certified that such of the following services as are applicable to the property have been installed and are operating adequately to serve the dwelling, or in the case of telephone services, are at least available to houses within the Development Plan: hydro, gas, water services, sanitary sewers and telephone.

#### SCHEDULE "C"

#### **BUILDING RESTRICTIONS**

(To be included in all Deeds)

(Continued)

The Purchaser shall not impede by the placing of fill, Buildings or other structures or Works any natural watercourse, swale, ditch, etc. which exists on the Lands.

The Purchaser shall not discharge by direct connection to a sanitary or storm sewer any discharge from eavestroughing, downspouts or swimming pools.

The Purchaser shall not erect any free standing tower, radio antenna, communication tower or similar structure.

#### SCHEDULE "D"

#### FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS AND COST OF CONSTRUCTION

#### SCHEDULE "D"

PELHAM STREET SEVERANCES (Duffy, 1127, 1129 and 1133.5)

#### FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS AND COSTS OF CONSTRUCTION

PRIMARY SERVICES	
Watermains and services (complete)	\$0.00
Storm sewers and services (complete)	\$0.00
Sanitary sewers and services (1133.5)	\$10,000.00
Flush sanitary services (1133.5)	\$500.00
Sodding of all major swales (no swales)	\$0.00
Total for Primary Security Purposes	\$10,500.00
SECONDARY SERVICES	
Driveway ramps	\$2,300.00
Grading and sodding boulevards	\$3,800.00
Boulevard trees	\$1,500.00
Total for Secondary Security Purposes	\$8,200.00
Sub-Total Subdivision Servicing Cost	\$18,700.00
Contingencies (5%)	900.00
Engineering (10%)	1,900.00
Subtotal Servicing, Engineering & Contingency	\$21,500.00
13% HST	2,800.00
TOTAL - CONSTRUCTION OF SERVICES	\$24,300.00
20% PRIMARY AND 120% SECONDARY SERVICES	\$16,000.00
Town Administration Fee	\$2,500.00
SUMMARY	
LETTER OF CREDIT REQUIRED	\$16,000.00
CASH PAYMENT REQUIRED	\$2,500.00

Receipted as SN313459 on 2011 05 12

The applicant(s) hereby applies to the Land Registrar.

yyyy mm dd

Page 1 of 2

at 11:24

**Properties** 

64072 - 0636 LT

✓ Redescription

Description

PT THOROLD TWP LOT 177 BEING PTS 3 & 4 59R14440; PELHAM

Address

PIN

PELHAM STREET

**FONTHILL** 

Source Instruments

Registration No.

Date

Type of Instrument

SN294803

2010 10 04

Charge/Mortgage

Party From(s)

Name

**DEGA LIMITED** 

Address for Service

544 Niagara Street

Welland, Ontario

L3C 1L8

I, DAVID NASH, have the authority to bind the corporation.

This document is not authorized under Power of Attorney by this party.

Party To(s)

Capacity

Share

Name

THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF PELHAM

Address for Service

P. O. Box 400 Fonthill, Ontario LOS 1E0

#### Statements

The applicant postpones the rights under the selected instrument to the rights under an instrument registered as number SN313458 registered on 2011/05/12

Signed By

Robert Bruce Smith

201-247 East Main St. PO Box 67

acting for Party From(s)

Party To(s)

2011 05 12 Signed

Welland L3B 5N9

Tel

9057355684

Fax 9057353340

I have the authority to sign and register the document on behalf of all parties to the document.

Robert Bruce Smith

201-247 East Main St. PO Box 67

acting for Signed

2011 05 12

Welland L3B 5N9

Tel

9057355684

Fax

9057353340

I have the authority to sign and register the document on behalf of all parties to the document.

Submitted By

LANCASTER, BROOKS & WELCH (WELLAND)

201-247 East Main St. PO Box 67

2011 05 12

Welland L3B 5N9

Tel 9057355684

Fax

9057353340

Receipted as SN313459 on 2011 05 12

wmm dd Page 2 o

The applicant(s) hereby applies to the Land Registrar.

yyyy mm dd

Page 2 of 2

at 11:24

Fees/Taxes/Payment

Statutory Registration Fee

\$60.00

Total Paid

\$60.00

Receipted as SN313460 on 2011 05 12

The applicant(s) hereby applies to the Land Registrar.

yyyy mm dd

Page 1 of 2

at 11:24

**Properties** 

PIN 64072 - 0121 LT ✓ Redescription

Description

PT TWP LT 177 THLD, BEING PTS 1 & 2 59R14440; PELHAM

Address

1133 PELHAM STREET

FONTHILL

Source Instruments

Registration No.

Date

Type of Instrument

SN294801

2010 10 04

Charge/Mortgage

Party From(s)

Name

**DEGA LIMITED** 

Address for Service

544 Niagara Street

Welland, Ontario

L3C 1L8

I, DAVID NASH, have the authority to bind the corporation.

This document is not authorized under Power of Attorney by this party.

Party To(s)

Capacity

Share

Name

THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF PELHAM

Address for Service

P. O. Box 400 Fonthill, Ontario L0S 1E0

#### Statements

The applicant postpones the rights under the selected instrument to the rights under an instrument registered as number SN313458 registered on 2011/05/12

Signed By

Robert Bruce Smith

201-247 East Main St. PO Box 67

acting for Party From(s)

Party To(s)

2011 05 12 Signed

Welland L3B 5N9

9057355684 Tel

Fax 9057353340

I have the authority to sign and register the document on behalf of all parties to the document.

Robert Bruce Smith

201-247 East Main St. PO Box 67

acting for

2011 05 12 Signed

Welland L3B 5N9

9057355684

Fax

Tel

9057353340

I have the authority to sign and register the document on behalf of all parties to the document.

Submitted By

LANCASTER, BROOKS & WELCH (WELLAND)

201-247 East Main St. PO Box 67

2011 05 12

Welland L3B 5N9

Tel 9057355684

Fax

9057353340

**Receipted as SN313460** on 2011 05 12

at 11:24

The applicant(s) hereby applies to the Land Registrar.

yyyy mm dd

Page 2 of 2

#### Fees/Taxes/Payment

Statutory Registration Fee

\$60.00

Total Paid

\$60.00

3194

### ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND DIRECTION

TO:	Robert Bruce Smith	
	(Insert lawyer's name)	•
AND TO:	LANCASTER, BROOKS & WELCH (WELLAND)	
AND TO.	(Insert firm name)	
RE:	Duffy Development Agreement	("the transaction")
	(Insert brief description of transaction)	
This will confirm	that:	
	iewed the information set out this Acknowledgement and Direction and in the documents"), and that this information is accurate;	nts described below
	nt or employee are authorized and directed to sign, deliver, and/or register electronicals in the form attached.	y, on my/our behalf
hereto being a Society of Upp	y authorized and directed to enter into an escrow closing arrangement substantially is copy of the version of the Document Registration Agreement, which appears on the weer Canada as of the date of the Agreement of Purchase and sale herein. I/We hereby as been reviewed by me/us and that I/We shall be bound by its terms;	bsite of the Law
	ne Documents has been fully explained to me/us, and t/we understand that t/we are part provisions of the Documents to the same extent as if t/we had signed them; and	ies to and bound by
I/we are in fact	the parties named in the Documents and I/we have not misrepresented our identities to	you.
(Transferor/Ch XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX	, am the spouse of and hereby cousers to the transmission which it is required. And the acknowledgment and the consent of all the Documents for which it is required.	XXXXXXXXXXXXXXiie Direction, I authorize
DESCRIPTION OF	ELECTRONIC DOCUMENTS	
	ocument(s) described in the Acknowledgement and Direction are the document(s) select o as "Document in Preparation" and are:	ted below which are
☐ A Tra	nsfer of the land described above.	
□ A Chi	arge of the land described above.	
10 Other	documents set out in Schedule "B" attached hereto.	
Dated at	(Fonthill), this 10th day of May	, 2011.
WITNESS		
. (As to all signi	atures, if required)	
		•
	THE COMPORATION OF PER:	THE TOWN OF PELHAM
	DAVE AUGUSTIN-MAY	R
	PER:	1 Dogge to
* 12 1 - 1	NANCY J. BOZZATO/ We have authority	to bind the
	corporation.	-

05-06-11;02:29PM;

Pelham, Town of ;905 735 3340

SCHEDULE "B"

LRO # 59 Notice

In preparation on 2011 05 08

This document has not been submitted and may be incomplete.

yyyy mm dd

Page 1 of 1

# 3/ 25

Properties

PIN . 64072 - 0636 LT ✓ Redescription

Description Address

PT THOROLD TWP LOT 177 BEING PTS 3 & 4, 59R14440; PELHAM PELHAM STREET

64072 - 0121 LT

✓ Redescription

Description

PIN

PT TWP LT 177 THLD. BEING PTS 1 & 2, 59R14440; PELHAM

1133 PELHAM STREET FONTHILL

Consideration

Consideration

\$ 1.00

Applicant(s)

The notice is based on or affects a valid and existing estate, right, interest or equity in land

THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF PELHAM

Acting as a company

Address for Service

P. O. Box 400 Fonthill, Ontario LOS 1E0

This document is not authorized under Power of Attorney by this party.

This document is being authorized by a municipal corporation by DAVE AUGUSTYN-MAYOR and NANCY J. BOZZATO-CLERK.

Statements

This notice is pursuant to Section 71 of the Land Titles Act.

This notice is for an indeterminate period

Schedule: See Schedules



# Lancaster, Brooks & Welch

PLEASE RESPOND TO	WELLAND OFFICE DATE: May le / //
	TELEÇOPIER (FAX) TRANSMITTAL SHEET
RE:	Duffy Development
	Agreement
TO: (FIRM)	Town of Pelham
ATTENTION:	Tara Oruzina
TELECOPIER NO.:	
FROM:	Bruce Smith / Patti
MESSAGE:	Please have attached
	Acknowledgement and Direction
	signed and returned to us
	by fax (with original to
	tollow in the mail)
	Thank Tara
·	RRITI
	INCLUDING TRANSMITTAL SHEET:
PLEASE ASK FOR	IF NOT RECEIVED
	THANK YOU.
	LANCASTER BROOKS & WELCH
INTENDED FOR THE PER. STRICTLY PROHIBITED.	DLICITOR-CLIENT PRIVILEGED AND CONTAINS CON-FIDENTIAL INFORMATION SON(S) NAMED ABOVE. ANY OTHER DISTRIBUTION, COPYING OR DISCLOSURE IS IF YOU HAVE RECEIVED THIS TELECOPY IN ERROR, PLEASE NOTIFY US HOME AND RETURN THE ORIGINAL TRANSMISSION TO US BY MAIL WITHOUT MAKING
247 Past Main Star	Lancaster Brooks & Welch LLP . eet, P. O. Box 67, Welland, Ontario, L3B 5N9
Telephone: (905) 7	
R. BRUCE SMITH	THOMAS G. HANRAHAN

#### **ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND DIRECTION**

TO:	Robert Bruce Smith		
	(Insert lawyer's name)	•	
AND TO:	LANCASTER, BROOKS & WELCH (WELLAND)		
	(Insert firm name)	•	
RE:	Duffy Development Agreement	('the transaction")	
	(Insert brief description of transaction)		
This will confirm	that:		
	viewed the information set out this Acknowledgement and Direction and in the docume nts"), and that this information is accurate;	nts described below	
	ent or employee are authorized and directed to sign, deliver, and/or register electronical is in the form attached.	ly, on my/our behalf	
hereto being a Society of Up	by authorized and directed to enter into an escrow closing arrangement substantially in copy of the version of the Document Registration Agreement, which appears on the webser Canada as of the date of the Agreement of Purchase and sale herein. I/We hereby a is been reviewed by me/us and that I/We shall be bound by its terms;	bsite of the Law	
	he Documents has been fully explained to me/us, and I/we understand that I/we are par provisions of the Documents to the same extent as if I/we had signed them; and	ties to and bound by	
1/we are in fac	t the parties named in the Documents and I/we have not misrepresented our identities to	o you.	
Transferor/Chargor), and heraby consent by the transferor/Chargor), and heraby consents for which it is required.			
DESCRIPTION OF	ELECTRONIC DOCUMENTS		
	ocument(s) described in the Acknowledgement and Direction are the document(s) selection	ted halow which are	
	to as "Document in Preparation" and are:	CO DEIOW WINEI EN	
☐ A Tra	ansfer of the land described above.		
	arge of the land described above.	,	
D Othe	r documents set out in Schedule "B" attached hereto.		
Dated at	(Fonthill), this 10 th day of May	, <b>20</b> 11.	
	Tomania , and Joseph and Joseph	annecessarione and the state of	
WITNESS	, and the second second		
(As to all sign	atures, if required)		
	THE CORPORATION OF	THE TOWN OF PELHAM	
	DAVE AUGUSTYN-MAY		
, 1 1 m - 1	PER:	1 Doggan	
•	NANCY J. BOZZATO/	00	
1 1	We have authority corporation.	to bind the	
***			

Pelham, Town of ;905 735 3340 # 3/ 25 05-06-11;02:29PM;

SCHEDULE "B"

LRO # 59 Notice

In preparation on 2011 05 08

at 11:49

This document has not been submitted and may be incomplete.

yyyy mm dd

✓ Redescription

✓ Redescription

Page 1 of 1

Properties

64072 - 0636 LT PIN .

PT THOROLD TWP LOT 177 BEING PTS 3 & 4, 59R14440; PELHAM

Description Address

PELHAM STREET FONTHILL

PIN

64072 - 0121 LT

Description

PT TWP LT 177 THLD, BEING PTS 1 & 2, 59R14440; PELHAM

Address

1133 PELHAM STREET FONTHILL

#### Consideration

Consideration

#### Applicant(s)

The notice is based on or affects a valid and existing estate, right, interest or equity in land

Name

THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF PELHAM

Acting as a company

Address for Service

P. O. Box 400 Fonthill, Ontario

This document is not authorized under Power of Attorney by this party.

This document is being authorized by a municipal corporation by DAVE AUGUSTYN-MAYOR and NANCY J. BOZZATO-CLERK.

#### Statements

This notice is pursuant to Section 71 of the Land Titles Act.

This notice is for an indeterminate period

Schedule: See Schedules

۶ .

-2-

## MICHAEL DUFFY AND PAMELA DUFFY DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

#### TABLE OF CONTENTS

<u>Title</u>	Section #	Page #
Definitions	1	3
Lands Affected	2	6
General Provisions	3	6
Design and Supervision of Construction of Services	4	8
Construction of Works	5	9
Contractors	6	9
Water Supply	7	9
Sanitary Sewers	8	10
Grade Control Plan	9	10
Driveways	10	10
Trees	11	11
Security Deposits and Refunds	12	11
Building Permits and Occupancy	13	13
Maintenance Guarantee	14	13
Cash-In-Lieu of Parkland Dedication	15	13
Inhibiting Order on the Lands	16	13
Default	17	14
Rescission of Agreement	18	14
Right of Entry	19	15
Warning Clauses	20	15
Indemnification	21	15
Covenants That Run With the Land	22	15
Notice	23	16
Postponement and Subordination	24	16
Schedules	25	16
Number and Gender	26	16
Notice Re: Development Charges	27	17
Binding Effect	28	17

- 3 -

THIS AGREEMENT made this

4-2-

day of May

;905 735 3340

. 2011

BETWEEN:

#### MICHAEL DUFFY AND PAMELA DUFFY

Hereinafter called the "Developer"

OF THE FIRST PART

- and -

#### THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF PELHAM

Hereinafter called the "Town"

OF THE SECOND PART

WHEREAS the Developer purports to be the owner of the lands in the Town of Pelham described in Schedule "A" and has applied to the Town of Pelham Committee of Adjustment for consent under application B-01/11P and B-02/11P and has obtained such consent subject to conditions;

AND WHEREAS the decision of the Committee of Adjustment was conditional upon, among other things, the entering into an Agreement by the Developer and the Town;

AND WHEREAS the Town requires the Developer, before final approval of the consents, to agree to certain terms and conditions for the development for which approval is sought;

NOW THEREFORE THIS AGREEMENT WITNESSETH that in consideration of the Town approving the said proposed development, and in consideration of the sum of One Dollar (\$1.00) of lawful money of Canada now paid by the Developer to the Town (the receipt thereof is hereby acknowledged), the Parties hereto mutually convenant and agree as follows:

#### 1. <u>DEFINITIONS</u>

In this Agreement:

- (a) <u>BUILDER</u> means the person engaged by the Owner or subsequent Owner to construct a Building or any other work on the Lot.
- (b) <u>BUILDING BY-LAW</u> means the Building By-law No. 2277 (2001) passed by the Town and amended from time to time.
- (c) <u>BUILDING</u> means any structure which is used or intended to be used for the shelter, accommodation or enclosure of persons, animals or chattels, and includes any structure as defined as a Building in the *Building Code Act* or in the Building By-law, but does not include any vehicles as defined herein.
- (d) <u>BUILDING CODE ACT</u> means the *Building Code Act*, R.S.O. 1990, c.B. 13, as amended, and all regulations thereto.
- (e) <u>BUILDING PERMIT</u> means a permit issued by the Chief Building Official of the Town and required pursuant to the provisions of the *Building Code Act*, as amended, or any successor thereto and the Building By-law of the Town and amendments thereto.
- (f) CHIEF BUILDING OFFICIAL means the Chief Building Official of the Town as appointed by by-law of the Council.
- (g) <u>CLERK</u> means the Clerk of the Town.
- (h) <u>COMMISSION</u> means the applicable local governing hydro-electric commission located in the Town.
- (i) CONSTRUCTION LIEN ACT means the Construction Lien Act, R.S.O. 1990, c.C. 30, as amended, and all regulations thereto.

- (j) COST OF CONSTRUCTION means the cost of construction approved by the Director and may include engineering fees ancillary thereto.
- (k) COUNCIL means the Council of the Corporation of the Town of Pelham.
- (I) <u>DEVELOPER</u> means Michael Duffy and Pamela Duffy, its successors and assigns, and includes its successors in title to the Lands or a Lot shown on the Development Plan.
- (m) <u>DEVELOPER'S CONSULTING ENGINEER</u> means the person or persons registered with the Professional Engineers of Ontario who are employed by the Developer, at its expense, to provide engineering services.
- (n) <u>DEVELOPMENT CHARGES</u> means the development charges as prescribed by the <u>Development Charges Act</u>, R.S.O. 1990, c.D. 9, as amended, or any successor thereto.
- (o) <u>DEVELOPMENT PLAN</u> means the Development Plan attached hereto as Schedule "A-1" over the Lands pursuant to the provisions of the *Planning Act*, as amended, or any successor thereto.
- (p) <u>DIRECTOR</u> means the Director of Community and Infrastructure Services for the Town.
- (q) FRONT LOT LINE means the front lot line as defined in the Town's Zoning By-law No. 1136 (1987), as amended, or any successor thereto.
- (r) GRADE CONTROL PLAN shall mean a plan for the purpose of controlling the overall drainage pattern through the establishment of relative surface elevations in accordance with good engineering and drainage practices.
- (s) LANDS means the lands described in Schedule "A" hereto annexed.
- (t) <u>LETTER OF CREDIT</u> means a standby municipal, irrevocable Letter of Credit issued by a major chartered bank or credit union, posted with the Town pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. The Letter of Credit shall be in form satisfactory to the Town and shall contain a clause that automatically renews it from year to year, unless the Town gives written notice that it does not require the Letter of Credit to be renewed.
- (u) LOCAL IMPROVEMENT shall include utilities, fencing, sanitary sewers, storm sewers, sidewalks, curbs and gutters, pavements and such other local improvements as are defined by the *Municipal Act*, as amended, or any successor thereto.
- (v) <u>LOT</u> means a lot as defined in Town's Zoning By-law No. 1136 (1987), as amended, or any successor thereto.
- (w) LOT FRONTAGE means lot frontage as defined in Town's Zoning By-law No. 1136 (1987), as amended, or any successor thereto.
- (x) LOT GRADING PLAN means a drawing showing grades, swales and drainage patterns and may include catch basins and floor heights in relation to grades for each individual building Lot or Block in the Development Plan.
- (y) MAINTENANCE GUARANTEE means an undertaking by the Developer to the Town that all Works constructed under this Agreement will function as designed and will not fail in any manner whatsoever so as to cause a risk to public safety or private lands, building or structures within the Development Plan or immediately adjacent boundary lands, and that should the Works, or any of them, fall or not perform their intended function within the specified maintenance guarantee period, they will be replaced or repaired to the satisfaction of the Director by the Developer at its cost.

- MUNICIPAL ACT means the Municipal Act, S.O. 2001, c.25, as amended, and all regulations thereto.
- (aa) ONTARIO LAND SURVEYOR shall mean a surveyor commissioned by the Province of Ontario and qualified to establish monuments that define the boundaries of a parcel or parcels of land and to prepare all necessary reference plans and surveys for the purpose of the Agreement.
- (bb) <u>OWNER</u> means the applicant for a Building Permit for one of the Lots and includes the person on whose behalf an application for a Building Permit is made.
- (cc) PLANNING ACT means the Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990, c.P. 13, as amended, and all regulations thereto.
- (dd) PLANS shall mean all drawings, plans, specifications, contracts and other documents providing for the installation, construction and erection of the Works approved by and filed in the office of the Director prior to execution of this Agreement by the Town.
- (ee) PRIMARY SERVICES means all private utilities and all municipal services including, without restricting the generality of the foregoing, storm sewers, sanitary sewers, sidewalks, fencing, watermain, roads (including base coarse asphalt and curbs and gutters), street lighting and drainage works and swales and/or such other works as detailed in Schedule "D" (Financial Obligations) attached to and forming part of this Agreement.
- (ff) PRIVATE UTILITIES means telephone, hydro electric systems and natural gas systems and cable television systems.
- (gg) REGION means The Regional Municipality of Niagara.
- (hh) <u>REGIONAL PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT</u> means the Region's Public Works Department.
- (ii) <u>SECONDARY SERVICES</u> means all works to be installed, constructed, or erected which are not Primary Services or private utilities and/or such other works as detailed in Schedule "D" (Financial Obligations) attached to and forming part of this Agreement.
- (jj) <u>SECTION</u>, when used in reference to a numbered part of the Agreement, means:
  - a complete section including all its sections and subsections;
  - (ii) a particular subsection including its subsections; and
  - (III) a particular subsection as the context may dictate or require.
- (kk) <u>STREET</u> means street as defined in the Town's Zoning By-law No. 1136 (1987), as amended, or any successor thereto.
- (II) STREET LINE means Street Line as defined in Town's Zoning By-law No. 1136 (1987), as amended, or any successor thereto.
- (mm) <u>SUPERVISION</u> means the full-time inspection and scrutiny of all Works for the express purpose of enforcing the provisions of this Agreement and certifying that the Works have been performed and completed to Town standards in the form prescribed for this purpose and "SUPERVISE" means to carry out such Supervision.
- (nn) TREASURER means the Director of Financial Services of the Town.
- (oo) <u>UTILITY SERVICES</u> means physical plant including but not limited to pipes, valves, conduits, cables, terminals, transformers, etc. owned and operated by communications, television, hydro, gas and oil companies or any other utility

companies.

(pp) WORKS shall jointly and severally mean and include all Services and all other matters, both internal and external, required to be completed or performed by the Developer pursuant to this Agreement.

#### 2. LANDS AFFECTED

The Lands to be subdivided are those Lands described in Schedule "A" attached hereto and the Development Agreement shall be registered against all of such Lands. The registered ownership of the Lands shall be confirmed by the Developer's solicitor by way of certificate in form satisfactory to the Town.

#### 3. **GENERAL PROVISIONS**

- (a) Unless the context otherwise requires, where the Developer is obligated by this Agreement or the approved Plans to make any payments or install or construct or carry out any services or action the provisions therefore contained herein shall be deemed to include the words "at the sole expense of the Developer".
- (b) The Developer hereby covenants, warrants and agrees to save harmless and keep the Town indemnified from and against all manner of actions, causes of actions, suits, claims and demands that may howsoever arise through or from the terms of this Agreement, other than claims arising from negligence by the Town of Pelham, its servants and agents.
- (c) The Developer and the Town acknowledge and agree that it is their intent that all terms, conditions and covenants contained herein:
  - (i) shall run with the Lands;
  - shall be binding upon the Developer, its heirs, executors, administrators, assigns and successors in title, from time to time; and
  - (iii) the benefits of the said covenants shall enure to the Town, its successors and assigns in title, of all roads, Streets and public Lands forming part of the Lands.
- (d) Any notices required or permitted to be given pursuant to the terms of this agreement shall be given in the manner set out in Section 23.
- (e) This Agreement and everything herein contained shall enure to the benefit of and be binding upon the successors and assigns of the parties hereto and upon those persons and/or corporations hereafter acquiring title to all or any part of the Lands.
- (f) The Developer shall impose restrictions as set forth in Schedule "C" annexed hereto on all the Lands so that subsequent Owners will be made aware of and shall strictly adhere to the requirements of this Agreement.
- (g) The Schedules attached hereto are deemed to be a part of this Agreement and are to be interpreted as if the contents thereof were included in this Agreement.
- (h) The Developer agrees to be bound by the penalty provisions of the Planning Act including, but not limited to, Section 67 of said Act.
- (i) Notwithstanding the provisions of this agreement, the Developer shall be subject to all the By-laws of the Town and all provincial and federal government statutes and/or regulations and amendments thereto affecting the development of land and installation of municipal services.
- (i) If any term of this agreement shall be found to be ultra vires of the Town, or otherwise unlawful, such term shall conclusively be deemed to be severable and the remainder of this agreement shall be and remain in full force and

effect

- (k) The Developer shall not call into question directly or indirectly in any proceeding whatsoever in law or in equity or before any administrative or other tribunal the right of the Town to enter into this agreement and to enforce each and every term, covenant and condition thereof and this provision may be pleaded by the Town in any such action or proceeding as a complete and conclusive estoppel of any denial of such right.
- (I) Time shall be of the essence of this agreement.
- (m) In the event that a Mortgagee(s) exercises any rights as to sale, possession or foreclosure or takes any other steps to enforce its security against the Lands then such Mortgagee(s) agrees on behalf of itself, its heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns not to deal with the Lands as a development or part thereof unless and until a new agreement in the same form, mutatis mutandis, as this Agreement has been entered into with the Town.
- (n) The Developer shall notify or cause to be notified, each and every purchaser of a Lot or Lots within the Development Plan, of all Works contracted by the Developer, the Developer's obligations to maintain the Works and all other conditions covered by this Agreement and shall cause such information to be fully recorded in any offer to purchase or agreement for sale entered into by the Developer.
- (o) The Developer shall pay, before final approval of the Development Plan is requested, all arrears of taxes and all taxes for the current year owing in respect of the Lands and the Buildings situate thereon.
- (p) The Developer shall commute and pay to the Town before final approval of the Development Plan is requested any and all Local Improvement rates assessed against the Lands.
- (q) The Town shall cause this Agreement to be Registered against the title to the Lands and at its option against the title to every Lot shown on the Development Plan.
- (r) If, after this agreement is executed, the Town, the Ministry of the Environment, the Ministry of Natural Resources, the Minister of Housing or the Region shall impose any further condition or requirement which is not contained herein, then the Developer shall forthwith upon demand enter into such further Agreement or give such further assurances as the Town may require and the Developer shall not contravene any condition or requirement of the Minister of Housing or the Region notwithstanding that the same is not contained herein.
- (s) The Developer shall cause the final Development Plan, as approved by the Town of Pelham, to be registered within thirty (30) days after its approval.
- (t) The Developer shall reimburse the Town for all fees and disbursements incurred by it in connection with the preparation, approval, execution and registration of this Agreement and all related documentation in connection with the preparation and enactment of any by-law or registration of any subsequent Agreements which may be required to implement this Agreement.
- (u) All Streets and properties abutting on the Development Plan or used for access to the Lands during the installation or construction of the Works or during the construction of Buildings upon the Lots shall, at all times, be kept in a good, clean and useable condition and, if damaged or littered, shall be restored immediately to the Town's requirements.
- (v) All trucks making deliveries to or taking materials from the Lands included within the Development Agreement shall be adequately covered and not unreasonably loaded so as to scatter refuse, rubbish, dust or debris on abutting Streets or properties.

- (w) Any lands required to be conveyed by the Developer in accordance with the provisions hereof shall be in a neat and tidy condition, free of all debris and trash, and the Developer shall complete all services for the Lands in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.
- (x) The Developer shall ensure that adequate dust control and mud tracking control measures are carried out during the construction of all Works and Buildings upon the Lands.
- (y) In the event that the Developer wishes to register more than one Development Agreement over the Lands, the Developer shall first obtain the written consent of the Town to do so, which consent shall be conditional upon the Developer registering such Development Agreement in such order as determined by the Town and upon registering such Development Agreement concurrently. The Developer shall not register a Development Agreement over part of the Lands without prior written consent of the Town.

#### 4. DESIGN AND SUPERVISION OF CONSTRUCTION OF SERVICES

- (a) The Developer shall employ, at its cost, a competent and qualified consulting engineer approved by the Director, to:
  - (i) carry out all soil investigations required by the Director;
  - (ii) design all of the works required to be completed by this Agreement;
  - (iii) provide the Director with an estimate of the cost of design, construction and maintenance of all works to be constructed under this Agreement to be used as the basis for determining the amount of security to be posted by the Developer prior to execution of this Agreement to guarantee the construction and maintenance of all works required under this Agreement;
  - (iv) prepare engineering drawings to include plans and profiles and specifications for the works and to submit detailed plans, profiles and specifications to the Director for approval prior to the installation or construction of such works;
  - (v) submit to the Director the detailed plans for signing and provide the Director with two (2) sets of full-sized, signed hard copies and two (2) sets of signed hard copies reduced to 11" x 17" size;
  - (vi) obtain, in conjunction with the Town, all of the necessary approvals prior to installation or construction of the works;
  - (vii) call tenders for the installation and construction of the works;
  - (viii) obtain the approval from the Director of the contractor employed to install or construct the works;
  - (ix) provide full-time resident supervision, inspection and contract administration of all works covered by this Agreement;
  - maintain all of the records of the installation or construction of the works and submit a copy of the same to the Director;
  - (xi) supply to the Director "As Constructed" drawings of all of the works installed or constructed by the contractor in both hard copy and DWG digitized format (AutoCad 2000 or equivalent), at the time of completion of primary services;
  - (xii) obtain from the Director the details regarding the form and scale of these drawings prior to their presentation;

- (xiii) on the completion of the installation or construction of the works, to supply the Town with a certificate, in a form satisfactory to the Director, that the works were installed or constructed in accordance with the approved plans and specifications;
- (xiv) provide the Director with individual record sheets for all sewer and water service locations and depths;
- (xv) accompany the Director on a final inspection of the works at the conclusion of the maintenance period herein specified and before the assumption of the works by the Town;
- (xvi) supervise the construction of any remedial work which the Director may direct;
- (xvii) provide building levels for construction purposes as hereinafter provided;
- (xviii) furnish the Director with the preliminary lot grading certificate for each Lot for which an application for a building permit is made; and
- (xix) provide the Town with the final lot grading certificate for each lot.
- (b) The Developer shall not install Works prior to the receipt by it in writing of the approval of the Director of the detailed Plans and specifications therefor.
- (c) All of the works to be installed or constructed under this Agreement shall be installed or constructed under the direct supervision of the Developer's Consulting Engineer at the expense of the Developer.

#### 5. CONSTRUCTION OF WORKS

The Developer agrees to construct and pay the whole cost of such construction and materials required for all of the works referred to in this Agreement and the Schedules attached, and in accordance with the conditions and specifications contained in said Agreement and Schedules.

#### 6. CONTRACTORS

Before commencement of any works, the Developer shall show satisfactory proof to the Director, that the proposed contractors or sub-contractors, whom the Developer has retained to construct works described in this Agreement, or any part of the works, have sufficient and valid liability insurance policies, indicating that the Town and its agents and servants are named insured; a certificate from the Workers' Safety Insurance Board showing that the contractor is in good standing; and satisfactory evidence that the contractor is qualified, experienced and has adequate equipment to successfully complete the Works. Any contractor employed by the Developer shall, as a condition of such employment, be approved by the Director.

#### 7. WATER SUPPLY

- (a) The Developer shall at its own expense construct water connections (laterals) to each Lot from the street main to the Street Line. The water lateral shall be 20mm diameter type K copper tubing.
- (b) The Developer shall ensure that Town Community and Infrastructure Services Staff (Water Distribution System Operator) witnesses the required connections to the municipal water supply service.
- (c) The location of the water service laterals shall be illustrated on the Site Servicing and Grading Plan including restoration of affected road and boulevard surfaces. The Site Servicing and Grading Plan shall be attached to this Agreement as Schedule "B".

(d) The Developer shall comply with the provisions of the Ontario Water Resources Act and amendments thereto and all Regulations thereunder, on all internal water supply services, which said Act and Regulations shall be enforced by the Town.

#### 8. SANITARY SEWERS

- (a) The Developer shall, at its own expense, construct sanitary sewer laterals on the said Lands to adequately serve the buildings to be erected thereon, such construction to be in accordance with specifications and a design approved by the Director and filed in the Town's offices prior to the issuance of a Building Permit. No storm, surface or roof water or weeping tiles shall be discharged into the sanitary sewer system. The sanitary sewer lateral shall be a minimum of 125mm diameter building sewer pipe or equal acceptable to the Director. The existing sanitary sewer lateral shall be inspected by the means of a colour video camera and a record of the inspection provided to the Town in compact disc format. The Town will review the video inspection report to determine if the sanitary sewer lateral can be continued to be used for servicing a new house proposed for this lot.
- (b) Domestic waste from any building constructed on any lot shall be discharged into the sanitary sewer system through a drain connected to the sanitary sewer system through a drain connected to the sanitary sewer lateral servicing each lot.
- (e) The location of the sanitary sewer laterals shall be Illustrated on the Site Servicing and Grading Plan including restoration of affected road and boulevard surfaces. The Site Servicing and Grading Plan shall be attached to this Agreement as Schedule "B".
- (d) A permit must be applied for and a fee paid to the Regional Municipality of Niagara for each sanitary sewer lateral connection.

#### 9. GRADE CONTROL PLAN

The Developer shall be responsible for providing, at their expense, a Grade Control Plan for the land described in Schedule "A" attached hereto; said plan to meet with the approval of the Director. Building Restrictions shall be imposed upon each Lot and included in each deed prohibiting a subsequent owner thereof from altering such flow or from impeding the same to an extent sufficient to cause ponding in another Lot or adjacent property. Said Grade Control Plan shall be attached to this Agreement at Schedule "B". All elevations shown on Schedule "B" shall be maintained after construction of any building or structure upon the lands affected, and this provision shall be included in the Building Restrictions hereinbefore referred to. Minor changes to the storm drainage system may be permitted subject to the approval of the Director.

#### 10. DRIVEWAYS

- (a) The Developer shall provide granular driveway access on the boulevard prior to occupancy of any Building. It shall be the responsibility of the Developer to ensure that driveway access is maintained at all normal times during the construction or maintenance of the Works.
- (b) All driveway approaches between the edge of the road and the sidewalk, or in the absence of a sidewalk between the edge of the road and the Street Line, shall be paved by the Developer by no later than the 1st day of November in the year after the year in which the buildings served by the driveway approaches are occupied.
- (c) All driveway approaches shall be constructed to the satisfaction of the Director.

#### 11. TREES

- In order to maintain a high standard of amenity and appearance, the Owner shall retain the maximum number of existing trees as approved by the Director consistent with good subdivision design and conservation practices;
- (b) In order to maintain a high standard of amenity and appearance, the Owner agrees to plant trees in accordance with the following:
  - (i) one tree per Lot Frontage and a minimum of two trees per Lot sideyard flankage shall be planted in the sodded portion of the street allowance between the lot line and the roadway in accordance with the Plans. Trees shall be sound, healthy, vigorous and free from plant disease with normally healthy root systems;
     (ii) trees shall be 70 millimetre callper, measured at a height of 1500
  - (ii) trees shall be 70 millimetre caliper, measured at a height of 1500 millimetres above grade, be contained in a wire basket and be of such native varieties as listed in the "Native Species of Niagara Planting Guide" published by Land Care Niagara and approved by the Town; (Black Maple, Basswood, Red Oak, Pin Oak)

In accordance with Schedule "D" affixed hereto, prior to execution of this Agreement by the Town, the Owner shall post with the Town security for the planting of trees at the rate of three-hundred dollars (\$300.00) per tree to be planted.

The Owner shall be solely responsible for acquiring and planting trees in accordance with the terms of this Agreement and delivering written notice to the Town that such work has been completed.

Provided, however, that in the event the Owner does not plant trees in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement or within the prescribed time or to the complete satisfaction of the Director then the Town may, at its sole discretion, plant or replace or replant trees in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement and apply the above mentioned security against the Town's costs and/or collect such costs in like manner as municipal taxes.

#### 12. SECURITY DEPOSITS AND REFUNDS

The Developer shall be responsible for the full amount of the cost for the design, servicing and maintenance of the Development Plans together with all Town administrative and consulting fees and legal costs and shall be required to post security, in a form satisfactory to the Town, on accounts of aforesaid costs, charges and fees in accordance with Schedule "D" affixed hereto prior to execution of this Agreement by the Town.

Security to be posted for Services and to cover the Town administrative, engineering and legal costs shall be calculated on the basis of the Developer's estimated cost of design, construction and maintenance of all Works as set out in Schedule "D" annexed hereto.

#### (a) CASH PAYMENTS

Prior to the execution of this Agreement by the Town, for payment of services to be rendered by the Town, its servants and its agents as required by this Agreement, and for presently outstanding payments owing to the Town, the Developer shall, in accordance with Schedule "D" annexed hereto, deposit with the Town the following non-refundable cash amounts:

- a cash amount to secure the Town's engineering, administrative consulting and legal costs for this Agreement, approval of the Plans, and enactment of by-laws calculated on the following basis:
  - (1) where the Cost of Construction of all Works is less than fifty thousand dollars (\$50,000.00), the charge shall be two thousand five hundred dollars (\$2,500.00);

- (2) where the Cost of Construction of all Works is in excess of fifty thousand dollars (\$50,000.00), the charge shall be two thousand five hundred dollars (\$2,500.00) plus five percent (5.0%) of the costs exceeding fifty thousand dollars (\$50,000.00);
- (ii) a cash amount to cover all arrears of taxes, all taxes for the current year and all current Local Improvement charges assessed against the Lands; and

#### (b) LETTERS OF CREDIT

- (i) Before commencing any of the Works provided for in this Agreement, the Developer will deposit with the Town a Letter of Credit drawn upon a chartered bank in favour of the Town and in a form satisfactory to the Treasurer, in an amount approved by the Director, which Letter of Credit shall be sufficient to guarantee the satisfactory completion of the Works or any portion of the Works as established by the Town in its sole discretion, and payments or any part thereof required to be made by this Agreement, and will, without restricting the generality of the foregoing, guarantee the following:
  - (1) payment of twenty percent (20%) of the approved estimated costs of the construction of the Primary Services to service the Lands, plus one hundred and twenty percent (120%) of the approved estimated construction costs of the Secondary Services upon the Lands as shown in Schedule "D" attached;
  - (2) payment of one hundred percent (100%) of any other payments or Works as may be required of the Developer by the Town pursuant to this Agreement.
- (ii) The amount of the Letter of Credit required hereunder shall not be reduced unless all of the conditions of this Agreement are complied with and the estimated costs of rectifying any outstanding deficiencies, as estimated in the sole discretion of the Director, plus one hundred and twenty percent (120%) of the estimated costs of the completion of all outstanding Primary Services and Secondary Services plus all other outstanding costs payable under this Agreement, plus the Maintenance Guarantee as required under Section 14 of this Agreement, plus any Construction Lien Act requirements are all, in total, less than the amount of the Letter of Credit held by the Town. In such an instance, the amount of the Letter of Credit may, in the sole discretion of the Director be reduced from time to time to an amount equal to the total of all amounts set out above. Such reduction shall be based on the following:
  - (1) progress certificates from the Developer's Consulting Engineer setting forth the cost of the Works completed and paid to date and the cost of unfinished Works; and
  - (2) a request for reduction in the amount of the Letter of Credit in a form approved by the Director; and
  - (3) proof of payment in a form satisfactory to the Director of the amounts paid on account of the completed Works to the date of the application for reduction.

Notwithstanding anything herein contained, the amount of the Letter of Credit shall at all times be sufficient to cover the balance of the costs of the completion of the unfinished Works, including Works deferred for extended periods and the requirements of the Construction Lien Act.

(c) The Developer shall pay the cost of the Works and the fees of the Developer's Consulting Engineer and the Ontario Land Surveyor

#### 13. BUILDING PERMITS AND OCCUPANCY

- (a) The Developer agrees that, unless otherwise determined by Council, no building permits shall be issued on any parts of the lands until all primary services as defined elsewhere in this Agreement are completed and operational to the satisfaction of the Director and soundness testing have been completed and results provided to and accepted by the Director.
- (b) in addition to paying the building permit fee, the Owner of a lot shall:
  - (i) Pay the amount of the development charges which are applicable at the time of application for building permit; and
  - (ii) Pay the amount of the cash-in-fieu of lands for parks purposes pursuant to Section 15 of this Agreement.

#### 14. MAINTENANCE GUARANTEE

- (a) The Letter of Credit deposited by the Developer pursuant to Section 132hereof may, upon the completion of the Primary Services, and prior to the assumption of the Primary Services by the Town, at the Director's discretion, be reduced to an amount equal to ten percent (10%) of the completed Works (Schedule "D") plus one hundred and twenty per cent (120%) of the value, as estimated by the Director, of any uncompleted Secondary Services and such Letter of Credit shall be retained by the Town as a Maintenance Guarantee to guarantee the workmanship and materials of the Works until such time as the Works are completed.
- (b) The Maintenance Guarantee as required under subsection 14(a) hereof, may be reduced further to five percent (5%) subject to the Developer meeting all requirements of the Construction Lien Act.
- (c) The Letter of Credit may be realized upon by the Town if the Developer defaults in any payment or condition contained herein.
- (d) The Developer shall be conclusively deemed to be in breach of the covenant contained in Section 14(c), if, in the case of the cost of the Works or the fees of the Developer's Consulting Engineer and the Ontario Land Surveyor, a lien against the Lands or any part thereof is preserved pursuant to the Construction Lien Act and if, in the case of any other payment required to be made under this Agreement, a notice to that effect is forwarded to the Developer by the Director in accordance with Section 23 hereof.

#### 15. CASH-IN-LIEU OF PARKLAND DEDICATION

Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the Owner agrees to pay five percent (5%) of the value of the lands to the Town in lieu of lands for parks purposes pursuant to the provisions of Subsection 42(6) of the *Planning Act*. The Developer shall have the Lots appraised by a qualified appraiser to determine the value of each Lot pursuant to Subsection 42(6) the *Planning Act*. Such appraisal is valid for a period of twelve (12) months, after such period the Town may, at its sole discretion, require an updated appraisal.

## 16. INHIBITING ORDER ON THE LANDS

The Developer shall not transfer or otherwise deal with the Lands or any part thereof and also acknowledges and agrees that the Town will register an inhibiting order pursuant to the *Land Titles Act*, R.S.O. 1990, c.L.5, preventing transfer of all or any part of the Lands until such time as the Director has issued the Completion

Certificate for Primary Services for the Lands. The Developer also acknowledges that the Town may register an inhibiting order against all or any part of the Lands for other matters to ensure compilance with this Agreement.

#### 17. DEFAULT

- (a) Upon breach by the Developer of any covenant, term, condition or requirement of this Agreement, or upon the Developer becoming insolvent or making an assignment for the benefit of creditors, the Town, at its option, may declare that the Developer is in default.
- (b) Notice of such default ("Notice of Default") shall be given by the Town and if the Developer does not remedy such default within such time as provided in the notice, the Town may declare that the Developer is in final default under this Agreement and shall then forthwith give notice of final default ("Notice of Final Default") thereof to the Developer.
- (c) Upon Notice of Default having been given, the Town may require all work by the Developer, their servants, agents, independent contractors and subcontractors to cease (other than any work necessary to remedy such default) until such default has been remedied and in the event of final default, may require all work as aforesaid to cease.
- (d) Upon Notice of Final Default having been given to the Developer, the Town may, at its option, adopt or pursue any or all of the following remedies, but shall not be bound to do so:
  - (i) Enter upon the Lands shown on the Development Plan by its servants, agents and contractors and complete any work, services repairs or maintenance wholly or in part required herein to be done by the Developer and collect the cost thereof from the Developer and/or enforce any security available to it;
  - (ii) Make any payment which out to have been made by the Developer and upon demand collect the amount thereof from the Developer and/or enforce any security available to it;
  - (iii) Retain any sum of money heretofore paid by the Developer to the Town for any purpose and apply the same in payment or part payment for any work which the Town may undertake;
  - (iv) Assume any work or services at its option, whether the same are completed or not, and thereafter the Developer shall have no claim or title hereto or remuneration therefor;
  - Bring action to compel specific performance of all or any part of this Agreement or for damages;
  - (vi) Add any costs incurred by the Town to the tax collector's roll for the Lands and collect such costs by action or in like manner as municipal real property taxes; or
  - (vii) Exercise any other remedy granted to the Town under the terms of this Agreement or available to the Town in law.

#### 18. RESCISSION OF AGREEMENT

- (a) In the event that the Development Agreement is not registered within one (1) year from the date hereof, then the Town may, at its option and on one (1) month's notice in writing to the Developer, declare this Agreement null and void and may Register against the title to the Lands included within the Development Plan a notice to that effect.
- (b) The Developer shall not sell or convey any Lot shown on the Development Plan until this Agreement is registered on title.

#### 19. RIGHT OF ENTRY

The Developer shall obtain from any Purchaser of any of the Lots shown on the Development Plan, a written statement permitting the Developer and the Town to enter upon such Lands for a period of three (3) years after the transfer thereof in order to ensure compliance with the provisions of this Agreement and shall forward an executed copy of written statement to the Town upon demand therefor.

#### 20. WARNING CLAUSES

- (a) The Developer acknowledges and agrees to insert into all offers and agreements of purchase and sale the following clause: "All Works within the Plan, including but not limited to storm sewers, storm water management facilities, sanitary sewers, watermain, roads, curbs and gutters, street lighting and drainage works and swales, are contracted by the Developer. The Developer is obligated to maintain the Works in accordance with the Agreement and Plans registered on title."
- (b) The Developer acknowledges and hereby agrees to insert into all offers and agreements of purchase and sale the following clause: "The lands in the Plan are subject to the payment of development charges which are payable prior to the issuance of a building permit."
- (c) The Developer acknowledges and hereby agrees to insert into all offers and agreements of purchase and sale the following clause: "The lands in the Plan are subject to the payment of cash-in-lieu of the dedication of land for park purposes prior to the issuance of a building permit."

#### 21. INDEMNIFICATION

Until the expiration of the Maintenance Guarantee, the Developer, on behalf of itself, its successors and assigns, including its successors in title of the Lands in the Development Plan, hereby releases and discharges and indemnifies the Town from and against all actions, causes of action, suits, claims and demands whatsoever which may arise by reason of:

- any alteration of the existing grade or level of any Street or Streets on the Plan to bring the said grade or level in conformity with the grade or level required by the Director; and
- (b) any damage to the Lands abutting on any Street or Streets shown on the Plan or to any Building erected thereon arising from or in consequence of any such alteration of grade or level; and
- (c) any damages or injuries (including death) to persons or damage to property occurring or arising on any Street or Streets on the Plan, however caused.

### 22. COVENANTS THAT RUN WITH THE LAND

- (a) The Developer and the Town acknowledge and agree that it is their intent that all the terms, conditions and covenants contained herein shall be covenants that run with the land and that the burden of such covenants shall be binding upon the Developer, their successors and assigns, and successors in title, from time to time, of the Lands described in Schedule "A" of this Agreement and any part or parts thereof and that the benefits of the said covenants shall enure to the Town, its successors and assigns in title of all roads, Streets and public lands forming part of or abutting on the Lands described in Schedule "A".
- (b) The Developer agrees that it shall, upon the sale or transfer by it of the Lands included within the Development Plan or any part or parts thereof, require the Purchaser or Transferee thereof as a condition of such sale or transfer to execute an Agreement satisfactory in form to the Town's Solicitor, agreeing to assume this Agreement and to be bound by and fulfil all of the terms, conditions and covenants herein set forth and containing a like

covenant to this effect. The said Assumption Agreement shall be executed by the Town, the Developer and any such Purchaser or Transferee and may, at the Town's option, be registered upon title. Provided, however, that such Assumption Agreement shall not be required for the sale or transfer of a Lot as shown on the Development Plan for the purpose of construction.

#### 23. NOTICE

All notices required or permitted to be given by one party to the other shall be given in writing either by prepaid registered mail or delivered personally addressed,

in the case of the Town to

Town of Petham 20 Petham Town Square P.O. Box 400 Fonthill ON LOS 1E0

and in the case of the Developer to

Michael Duffy and Pamela Duffy 23L101 Lakeshore Road Wainfleet, ON L0S 1V0

or at such other addresses as may be given by either of them to the other in writing from time to time, and such notices shall be deemed to have been received, if malled, on the third day following that on which it was so mailed and if delivered, on the day of such delivery.

#### 24. POSTPONEMENT AND SUBORDINATION

The Developer covenants and agrees at its own expense, to obtain and register such documentation in form satisfactory to the Town's solicitor from all mortgagees or encumbrancers as may be deemed necessary by the Town to postpone and subordinate their interest in the Lands to the interest of the Town to the extent that this Agreement and all related documentation to be registered shall take effect and have priority as if they had been executed and registered before the execution and registration of the document or documents giving to the mortgagees and/or encumbrancers their interest in the Lands. The Developer acknowledges that it shall not be permitted to sell any lots within the Development Plan until such time as these postponements have been registered and that the Town shall be permitted to register an inhibiting order pursuant to the Land Titles Act to ensure compliance with same.

#### 25. SCHEDULES

The Schedules attached hereto are a part of this Agreement. All Schedules are to be interpreted as if the contents thereof were included in the Agreement.

#### 26. NUMBER AND GENDER

in this Agreement, unless there is something in the subject-matter or context inconsistent therewith:

- words in the singular number include the plural and such words shall be construed as if the plural had been used;
- (ii) words in the plural include the singular and such words shall be construed as if the singular had been used; and
- (iii) words importing the use of any gender shall include all genders where the context or party referred to so requires, and the rest of the sentence shall be construed as if the necessary grammatical and terminological changes had been made.

# 27. NOTICE RE: DEVELOPMENT CHARGES

The Developer agrees to provide notice to the first purchaser of any Lot in the Development, upon transfer of the Lots, of all Development Charges related to the Development, including Development Charges already paid by the Developer or Development Charges that may be payable in the future.

## 28. BINDING EFFECT

This Agreement shall be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns.

SIGNED, SEALED AND DELIVERE IN THE PRESENCE OF:	ED
}	MICHAEL DOPEN
Witness )  [Print Name] )	Michiga D. Doney (Print Name)
. }	PAMELA DUFFY
	Jamela Bluffy
Witness ) Tara Onuzina )	PAMELA DUFFY
(Print Name)	(Print Name)
ý	THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF PELHAP
) ) )	five Jony A
)	Dave Augustyń, Meyor
) ) )	Nancy Bozzato, Cledil
•	

## - 18 -

## TABLE OF SCHEDULES

		Page No.
A	LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF DEVELOPMENT LANDS	19
B.	SITE SERVICING AND PLAN	21
C	BUILDING RESTRICTIONS	22
а	FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS AND COST OF CONSTRUCTION	24

- 19 -

## SCHEDULE "A"

#### LEGAL DESCRIPTION

Part of Lot 177, former Township of Thorold, now Town of Pelham, Regional Municipality of Niagara and more particularly described as Parts 1, 2, 3 and 4 of Reference Plan No. 59R-14440.

The described lands being all of PIN 64072-0121(LT) and PIN 64072-0636(LT).

- 20 -

## SCHEDULE "B"

## SITE SERVICINGAND GRADING PLAN

Site Servicing Plan Job No. 4349 SP, prepared by Suda & Maleszyk Surveying Inc., dated April 29, 2011, the original of which is located at the Town at the address shown in Section 23 of this Agreement.

#### SCHEDULE "C"

# BUILDING RESTRICTIONS (To be included in all Deeds)

The Developer shall cause to be registered against all Lots in the Development Plan the transfer restrictions and restrictive covenants outlined below.

According to the nature of the annexed instrument, the words "Vendor", "Purchaser" and "Land" shall be have the following meaning:

- (a) "VENDOR" means and includes also a grantor, transferor or seller and the heirs, successors and assigns of the Vendor.
- (b) "PURCHASER" means and includes also a grantee, transferee or buyer and the heirs, successors and assigns of the Purchaser.
- (c) "LAND" means and includes the land intended to be sold, conveyed or transferred by such instrument.

The Purchaser shall, in respect of the herein described land, adhere to and comply with the Grade Control Plan attached to the Agreement registered in the Land Titles Office for Niagara South and, in particular, shall do nothing to interfere with or impede the drainage patterns shown thereon. All grade elevation shown on the said Grade Control Plan shall be maintained after construction of any Building or structure upon the herein described land in accordance with the Town's Lot Grading Control Policy. In the event that the Purchaser fails to maintain such elevations, or to maintain the proper grades and levels herein referred to, or in the event that the Purchaser Impedes any drainage system or pattern on the herein described Lands or neighbouring lands, the Purchaser shall be responsible for the immediate rectification and alteration of the land to conform with the drainage system or patterns laid out in the Agreement for any consequential damages, costs, expenses or other loss caused by the failure to maintain such grades or drainage patterns.

The Purchaser shall, in the event of requiring a different driveway entrance from that installed by the Vendor, relocate services/utilities at Purchaser's expense, cut and reconstruct the concrete curb where necessary on the roadway adjacent to the land herein described. He shall install, keep and maintain his driveway entrance or entrances from the traveled portion of the roadway to the Street line in good condition until the concrete sidewalk, concrete curbs and/or asphalt roadways for the said Development are constructed.

The Purchaser shall, within twelve (12) months of being able to occupy the home in accordance with the *Ontario Building Code* and to the satisfaction of the Chief Building Official, sod the lot.

The Purchaser shall maintain the road allowance between the Street line and the edge of the road in good condition and free from weeds and shall cut the grass thereon at frequent intervals

The Purchaser will not remove any topsoil or strip the Lot of vegetation prior to commencing construction of a Building unit on the Lot. Only then will the Purchaser strip and excavate to the limit approved by the Town.

The Purchaser shall not occupy the dwelling on the Lot concerned until the Chief Building Official for the Town has certified that such of the following services as are applicable to the property have been installed and are operating adequately to serve the dwelling, or in the case of telephone services, are at least available to houses within the Development Plan: hydro, gas, water services, sanitary sewers and telephone.

- 22 -

## SCHEDULE "C"

# BUILDING RESTRICTIONS (To be included in all Deeds)

(Continued)

The Purchaser shall not impede by the placing of fill, Buildings or other structures or Works any natural watercourse, swale, ditch, etc. which exists on the Lands.

The Purchaser shall not discharge by direct connection to a sanitary or storm sewer any discharge from eavestroughing, downspouts or swimming pools.

The Purchaser shall not erect any free standing tower, radio antenna, communication tower or similar structure.

- 23 -

## SCHEDULE "D"

## FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS AND COST OF CONSTRUCTION

## SCHEDULE "D"

## PELHAM STREET SEVERANCES (Duffy, 1127, 1129 and 1133.5)

## FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS AND COSTS OF CONSTRUCTION

PRIMARY SERVICES	
Watermains and services (complete)	\$0.00
Storm sewers and services (complete)	\$0.00
Sanitary sewers and services (1133.5)	\$10,000.00
Flush sanitary services (1133.5)	\$500.00
Sodding of all major swales (no swales)	\$0.00
Total for Primary Security Purposes	\$10,500.00
SECONDARY SERVICES	
Driveway ramps	\$2,300.00
Grading and sodding boulevards	\$3,800.00
Boulevard trees	\$1,500.00
Total for Secondary Security Purposes	\$8,200.00
Sub-Total Subdivision Servicing Cost	\$18,700.00
Contingencies (5%)	900,00
Engineering (10%)	1,900.00
Subtotal Servicing, Engineering & Contingency	\$21,500.00
13% HST	2,800.00
TOTAL - CONSTRUCTION OF SERVICES	\$24,300.00
20% PRIMARY AND 120% SECONDARY SERVICES	\$16,000.00
Town Administration Fee	\$2,500.00
SUMMARY	
LETTER OF CREDIT REQUIRED	\$16,000.00
CASH PAYMENT REQUIRED	\$2,500.00

## TRANSMISSION VERIFICATION REPORT

TIME : 05/11/2011 10:03 NAME : TOWN OF PELHAM FAX : 1-905-892-5055 TEL : SER.# : 000C5J223399

DATE,TIME FAX NO./NAME DURATION PAGE(S) RESULT MODE

05/11 09:57 99057353340 00:05:56 24 OK STANDARD ECM



May 11, 2011

Mr. R. Bruce Smith Lancaster, Brooks & Welch LLP Barristers and Solicitors PO Box 67, 247 East Main Street Welland, ON L3B 5N9

**RE:** Duffy Development Agreement

Dear Mr. Smith

Please find enclosed the Acknowledgement and Direction for the Duffy Development Agreement.

If you have any further questions regarding the attached, please do not hesitate to contact Ms. Bozzato at 905-892-2607, extension 315.

Yours truly,

DB

(Mrs.) Nancy J. Bozzato, AMCT, ACST Town Clerk

Encl.

C: Craig Larmour